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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”)
of Universe International Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| hereby present the 2011/2012 annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2011: same) and any special cash dividend (2011: HK$1.24
cents per ordinary share) for the year ended 30th June 2012.

OPERATING RESULTS

The operating environment of the Group remained difficult and
challenging in the past year. For the year ended 30th June 2012,
the revenue of the Group decreased by 42.2% over the same
period last year to HK$75.9 million. Notwithstanding, the loss
attributable to the equity holders of the Company narrowed by
16.4% from HK$20.9 million to HK$17.5 million. Loss per share
for the year was HK1.03 cents compared to HK1.29 cents in
2011. The improvement in the Group’s results was mainly due
to a decline in impairment losses of film rights and film deposits
from last year’'s approximately HK$12.5 million to HK$1.5
million. The provision for impairment losses of film rights and fim
deposits was made with reference to the cast or scale of each
film, current market conditions and each film deposit recipient’s
reputation, trade history and current financial position. However,
such decline was partly offset by a provision for impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets of HK$3.0 milion and share-
based compensation of HK$1.5 million during the year. In view
of the adverse trend of financial health and business outlook
for the investee, including factors such as industry and sector
performance as well as operational and financing cash flow,
various operating metrics fell short of management’s previous
expectation, therefore management determined the investment in
available-for-sale financial assets is impaired.

In response to the above, the Group continued to adopt a
cautious approach towards investment in the production of
films and television series. Consequently, the number of new
blockbuster films and television series released reduced, which in
turn resulted in a decrease in the Group’s consolidated revenue
during the year under review.
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INFERNO
HHER

During the year under review, the local video distribution market
remained stagnant resulting in a decline in the revenue of 21.2%
from last year's HK$13.4 milion to HK$10.6 milion. Despite the
lowered revenue, the Group experienced a higher gross profit, which
was in line with our strategies of appropriate pricing and prudent
acquisition of new titles for the local video distribution business.

As announced in August 2011, the Group raised net proceeds
(after expenses) of approximately HK$9.8 million by placing of
87,165,000 ordinary shares of the Company. The Board believed
that such placing has further enhanced the working capital and
cash flow position of the Group.

Looking ahead, we expect the overall operating environment will
remain challenging in the coming year. In light of this, the Group
will continue to develop its business operations in a prudent and
pragmatic manner.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would also like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere thanks and gratitude to my fellow directors
and our staff for their dedication and contribution to the Group in
the past year. | would also like to thank all our customers and our
shareholders for their continued support.

By Order of the Board
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th September 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ST BEY RS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Video distribution

During the year under review, the local video distribution
business continued to shrink where revenue from this business
segment recorded a decline of 21.2% from HK$13.4 million
to HK$10.6 million. It contributed 13.9% (2011: 10.2%) of the
Group’s consolidated revenue. The decrease in revenue from
this business segment was mainly due to fewer new titles being
released during the year under review, as the management
continued to adopt a cautious and prudent approach towards
film acquisition.

SLEEPWALKER
2k

Gross profit of this business segment decreased by 10.6% to
approximately HK$2.6 million, compared with HK$2.9 million
recorded in the same period last year. Despite the foregoing, the
gross profit margin of video distribution, before impairment losses
of film rights and film deposits made for this business segment,
improved from 21.6% to 24.6% owing to the Group’s strategies
of appropriate pricing and prudent acquisition of new titles for this
business segment.

In view of such difficult operating environment, the Group has
continued with the strategies of streamlining its cost structure
and adopting a prudent approach in respect of acquisition of new
titles for the local video distribution business.
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Film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights

A decline in the number of new blockbuster films and television
series completed and released in the financial year 2011/2012
affected the revenue of film exhibition, licensing and sub-
licensing of film rights. During the year under review, the revenue
generated from this business segment was HK$56.4 million,
representing a decrease of 50.3% over the same period last year.
The revenue from this business segment accounted for 74.4%
(2011: 86.6%) of the Group’s consolidated revenue.

Revenue from film exhibition was HK$3.6 million, representing
a decrease of 64.7% compared with the same period last year.
This reduction in revenue from film exhibition was mainly due to
fewer blockbuster films released during the year under review. Its
operating loss rose from HK$0.8 million to HK$5.4 million as the
box office of the films released during the year under review has
not been satisfactory and promotional cost incidental to the film
released increased.

For the above reason, revenue from licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights also declined by 48.9% to HK$52.8 million compared
to the previous year. Notwithstanding the decrease in revenue,
gross profit margin of licensing and sub-licensing of film rights,
before impairment losses of fim rights and fim deposits made
for this business segment, rose from 13.3% to 25.9% as there
was higher contribution from non-newly released films. The gross
profit margin for such non-newly released fims is typically higher
because their cost had been fully amortized in previous years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE W R

In terms of geographical contribution, overseas markets accounted
for 57.0% (2011: 65.5%) of the Group’s total revenue during the
year under review. Revenue from the Mainland China market
decreased by HK$27.8 million to HK$35.1 million, accounting for
46.2% (2011: 47.7%) of the Group’s consolidated revenue.

LOVE LIFTING
P R

LEASING OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year under review, this business segment recorded a
growth of 5.9 times in revenue to HK$248,000 from HK$36,000.
The growth was the result of acquisition of a residential property in
Hong Kong for leasing purpose in April 2011 and the leasing out of
two properties during the year under review. These two properties
were previously held for own-use by the Group. The management
will continue to explore and consider investment opportunities in
properties that would offer stable and satisfactory returns.

OUTLOOK

We expect operating environment for the Group to remain
challenging in the coming year. In response to this factor, the
Group will closely monitor the market environment and evaluate
its pace of business development accordingly.

The management continues to be encouraged by the Group’s
development in the Mainland China market and has identified it
as the key market for the Group’s future development. To take
advantage of this positive trend, the Group will continue to devote
more efforts on development of the Mainland China market.
Meanwhile, the Group will continue to control stringently its cost
and streamline its operations to enhance efficiency.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES/LIQUIDITY
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s financial position remained healthy. As at 30th June
2012, the Group had cash balances of HK$71.1 million (2011:
HK$79.4 million). As stated in the announcement dated 24th
August 2011, the Group raised net proceeds (after expenses) of

ETFRERERAERAR
—E-FFR

Management Discussion and Analysis
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approximately HK$9.8 million by placing of 87,165,000 ordinary
shares of the Company on 22nd August 2011. The Directors
considered that such placing could strengthen the financial
position of the Group and the net proceeds would be applied as
general working capital.

As at 30th June 2012,
approximately HK$307.8 million, representing an increase of
HK$35.8 million over that as at 30th June 2011.

the Group had total assets of

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 30th June 2012 fell to almost
zero (2011: 0.08%), which was calculated on the basis of the
Group’s long term borrowings including obligations under finance
leases of approximately HK$15,000 (fully repayable within one
year) and on the total equity of the Company of approximately
HK$234.5 million.

There was no finance cost incurred for the year ended 30th June
2012 (2011: same).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In light of the fact that most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States
dollars, the management considers the Group’s exposure to
fluctuations in exchange rates to be limited and thus no financial
instruments for hedging purposes are used by the Group.

THE PLEDGE OF GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30th June 2012, the Group did not have any pledged
assets (2011: same).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30th June 2012, the Group employed 45 staff (2011:
49). Remuneration is reviewed annually and certain staffs are
entitled to commission. In addition to basic salaries, staff benefits
included discretionary bonus, medical insurance scheme and
mandatory provident fund.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 26th November 2003, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual general
meeting held on 29th November 2011 (the “2011 AGM”), the
Company approved the refreshment of the scheme mandate
limit, which is 10% of the total number of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of the 2011 AGM, under the Scheme.
After the refreshment of the scheme mandate limit, the total
number of share options available for issue under the Scheme
as at the date of the 2011 AGM was 171,177,037, which
represented 10% of the total number of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of the 2011 AGM.

CONSPIRATORS
ZES

On 27th June 2012, the Company granted 34,235,403 share
options, which represented 2% of the total number of the
issued shares of the Company as at 30th June 2012, to certain
Directors and employees of the Company at the subscription
price of HK$0.067 per share option which were vested
immediately and exercisable for a three-year period between 27th
June 2012 and 26th June 2015 (both days inclusive). Each share
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share of the Company. None of the share options has been
exercised or cancelled for the period from 27th June 2012 to
30th June 2012. There was no share option outstanding prior to
27th June 2012 under the Scheme.

The total number of share options available for issue under
the Scheme as at 30th June 2012 was 136,941,634, which
represented 8% of the total number of the issued shares of the
Company as at 30th June 2012.

Certain Directors and employees of the Group have been granted
share options under the Scheme, details of which are set out in
the section headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” of the Report of
the Directors on page 39 of this annual report.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EEREREBASHN

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil, aged 50, is the founder and Chairman
of the Group. He is involved in marketing, corporate strategy,
business planning and development and overall management of
the Group. Mr Lam has 31 years of experience in the fim industry
in Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards of
Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2002.

Mr YEUNG Kim Piu, aged 51, is mainly responsible for overseeing
the operation of artiste management division. Mr Yeung joined the
Group in 1993 and has over 15 years of experience in the fim
distribution industry in Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr NG Kwok Tung, aged 62, is a practising accountant. He holds
a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a licentiate in accountancy
from McGill University, Canada and a diploma in Chinese law
from the University of East Asia, Macau. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of British Columbia,
the Order of Chartered Accountants of Quebec, the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr Ng is also an independent non-executive director
of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited and a non-executive director of
Wah Ha Realty Company Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). He joined the Group in May 1999.
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Dr LEUNG Shiu Ki, Albert, aged 63, is currently the Financial and
Business Development Consultant of Beauchamp International
Development Limited, which is a private company incorporated
in Hong Kong and is responsible for providing financial and
business development service to various companies. Dr Leung
has 10 years of experience in accounting and auditing in
accounting firms in England from 1977 to 1987. From 1987
to 1992, he joined Citicorp International Limited as Assistant
Vice President with a major responsibility in corporate finance
matters in Hong Kong. He holds a Doctor degree of Philosophy
in Economics from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics, the People’s Republic of China, a Master degree
of Business Administration from Brunel University, England and
a Diploma in Management Studies from The Polytechnic of
Central London, England. Dr Leung has also passed the fina
qualifying examinations of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (“ACCA”), the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, all in the United Kingdom. Dr Leung is also an
independent non-executive director of Tack Fiori International
Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in November 2008.

EEREREEAEHN

RKEB L 635 ARBEFEERRAR
REAN(B—RRNEBEIMERLZFARE I
REVBEEALAXRERBRE T IRAAET
Pz EkEEERBRE -R—LEtLFE
—NAN\LFHHE RELERRBEZZEE
AEMEBMRABIOFZ @t RBEA LR -
—NANEFE-NANZFHE BEREBMA
FEERTERERARAYEREE T28
ACEMBEE - RHATEARKME LG
MRRERFR ZRBERE LB REMER
BARER s ITHEESRT 2T N RER/H
FRETERBERZEEER - RELID
BRARBFFARSITMAE RERTER
SRS LR REAFIFMETRABRGZR
REBZA - RBLNAHTFEREEAERA
A (R B R FT £ IR £ ) 2 B FERTT
EXZ-RR_FTNF+-AMALREER-

19

MY SASSY HUBBY
N HEQEL




Universe International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012

Directors and Senior Management Profile
EEREREEAEHN

Mr MA Chun Fung Horace, aged 42, is a seasoned accountant
with extensive experience in risk and internal control. Mr Ma is a
Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) registered with HKICPA,
a fellow member of ACCA, a Certified Internal Auditor registered
with the Institute of Internal Auditors and holder of Certification of
Control Self-Assessment of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Mr
Ma also holds various degrees including Master of Science and
Bachelor of Business Administration conferred by the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and Bachelor of Laws conferred by the
University of London, England. Mr Ma was a council member
of HKICPA between 2009 and 2011. Mr Ma is an independent
non-executive director of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited,
Dejin Resources Group Company Limited and China Tianrui
Group Cement Company Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group
in November 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr LAM Siu Keung, Alvin, aged 42,
Officer of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing the daily
operation of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in 2002, Mr
Lam has over eight years of experience in finance and internal
control consulting for both Hong Kong and the United States
listed companies in Arthur Andersen. He earned his Bachelor of
Accountancy at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
fellow member of both ACCA and HKICPA. He is the younger
brother of Mr LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil.

is the Chief Operation

Mr CHAN Hau Chuen, aged 42, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Group. He is responsible for the
financial and accounting functions of the Group. Prior to joining
the Group in 1998, Mr Chan has over six years of experience in
finance and accounting in an international accounting firm and a
publicly listed company in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
ACCA and an associate member of HKICPA.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of a good
standard of corporate governance practices by emphasizing
transparency, accountability and responsibility to our
shareholders.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

On 1st April 2012, the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) (the “Former Code”) was
amended and renamed as Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “New Code”). The Company
has adopted the code provisions as stated in the New Code in
substitution for and to the exclusion of the Former Code with
effect from 1st April 2012. The Company has, throughout the
year ended 30th June 2012, complied with the code provisions
contained in both the Former Code and the New Code except for
the code provision A.2.1 of the Former Code and the New Code
for the separation of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) as described in the following.

Code provision A.2.1 of both the Former Code and the New
Code sets out that the roles of the Chairman and CEO should
be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company does not at present have any officer
holding the position of CEOQ. Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil is the
founder and Chairman of the Company and has also carried
out the responsibilities of CEO. Mr Lam possesses the essential
leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive knowledge
in the business of the Group. The Board considers the present
structure to be more suitable to the Group because it can
promote the efficient formulation and implementation of the
Group’s strategies.
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THE BOARD
DUTIES AND COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The board of directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”)
(the “Board”) is collectively responsible for the oversight
of the management of business, strategic decisions and
financial performance of the Group for the best interests of
the shareholders. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management power of the Group to the executive Directors and
the senior management of the Company. The Board reviews
its arrangement on delegation of responsibilities and authority
regularly to ensure that such delegations are appropriate in view
of the Group’s prevailing circumstances.

The following matters (including changes to any such matters) are
reserved for the approval of the Board:

(@  any matter determined by the Board to be material involving
any conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder of the
Company or a Director;

(b) any matter relating to the formulation of the Company’s
strategies and directions including:

(i) policies relating to the overall strategic direction and
strategic plans of the Company;

(i)  policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

(i)  policies relating to the declaration of dividend; and
(iv)  the entering into of contracts involving acquisitions,
investments, disposal of assets or any significant

capital expenditure which are deemed to be material
by the Board.
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financial controls, compliance and risk management:

M

(iv)

the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets for the Company;

the approval of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements and published reports;

the establishment and review of the effectiveness of
the Company’s systems of internal control and risk
management process; and

the adoption of, or approval for any significant
changes in, accounting policies or procedures of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

changes to the Company’s capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of
new securities, other than in accordance with the terms
of the share option scheme(s) or other incentive schemes
adopted by the Company from time to time;

major appointments and removals:

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

appointments to the Board, taking into account any
recommendations of the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”);

the appointment of the Chairman;

recommendation to the shareholders on the
appointment or removal of the external auditor after
taking into consideration the recommendations of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”); and

the appointment or removal of the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”).
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() delegation of authority:

(i) changes to the terms of reference or membership of
any committee of the Board;

(i)  changes to the authority delegated to the Chairman
and the senior management; and

(i)  matters which exceed the authority delegated to the
Chairman and the senior management.

(@9 the adoption, review and approval of changes to the
Corporate Governance Practice Manual of the Company,
the Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions applicable
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors, with
two executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The names and biographies of the Directors are set out
on pages 18 to 20 of this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors are all experienced
individuals, all of them have accounting professional
qualifications. Their mix of professional skills and experience
is beneficial to the Board to formulate the long-term business
strategies and monitor the operational and financial matters of the
Group.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to cover the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the New Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

The Directors were updated on the recent amendments to the
Listing Rules relating to the New Code and relevant Listing Rules,
which came into effect on 1st January 2012 or 1st April 2012,
at the regular Board meeting. Effective from 1st April 2012, all
Directors are required to provide the Company with his training
records on an annually basis.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee or by the
shareholders in general meeting. Any Director who is appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board shall retire at
the next annual general meeting.

Currently, all independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of three years. All Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least every three years and re-election
in accordance with the provision of the Listing Rules and the
bye-law(s) of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). At least one-third
of Directors shall retire from office every year at the Company’s
annual general meeting.

Mr Yeung Kim Piu, Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert and Mr Ma Chun
Fung, Horace will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with 87(1) and
87(2) of the Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Each year, the Board normally held four regular board meetings
at approximately quarterly interval. 12 board meetings were
convened during the year ended 30th June 2012 and the
attendances of each Director at these meetings are set out as

follows:

Attendance
Executive Directors
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 11/12
Mr Yeung Kim Piu 11/12
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr Ng Kwok Tung 11/12
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert 10/12
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace 11/12

GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue
with the shareholders and in particular, communicates with
them in annual general meetings or other general meetings and
encourages their participation.

A general meeting, being the annual general meeting held on
29th November 2011, was convened during the year ended 30th
June 2012 and the attendances of each Director at this general
meeting are set out as follows:

Attendance
Executive Directors
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 1M1
Mr Yeung Kim Piu 11
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr Ng Kwok Tung 11
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert 1/1
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace 11
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee with specific written terms
of reference was established by the Company on 15th July
2005. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr Ma Chun
Fung, Horace (as Chairman), Mr Ng Kwok Tung and Dr Leung
Shiu Ki, Albert, and an executive Director, namely Mr Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and
the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and senior management and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy.

The model of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company is to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The main principles of the Group’s remuneration policies are:

(@  no Director should be involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration;

(b)  remuneration should be determined by taking into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, levels of responsibilities,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration; and

(c) the management’s remuneration proposals should be

reviewed and approved by reference to corporate goal and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

28

EETLET

EERORUARINTMEE S ((FHZ

Egl) EXEEeREHESE.
ML Ee

AARR-EEREL AR AEERE

RXEEBENHIHEZE S - FTMEZE SRS
—ERBUFRTER HRIRFRELLE (K
FEXE) HBEREERRKEFTLE —BH
TES RWIREEREK -FHEES 2
BB v 0 [ T TR B X AT 2 AR AL R AR A R 2 A B
e

FHERE S EIRRABRERARREZTLS
Z&EEEAE\Z TR M ABRESTSFHRE
BMEY —EIE R RIER 2R AR R
HRZMA-

ARRERAZFHNE B 2R AR ERHNT

SERBREBAR 2 HFWSBAEFRIRHN
TR
AEEFHWEE EERABETIHEE:

@ BFIE2EBIIHEASZHH:

b) FEMEZEMREARAOEFM FiH
R~ BRE - SR O EL A B B0 1R PR MR 1
MELRERRBFMEREZMER
&

© EEEBZFHEZREE2REZRET
@B R B B AR A e AT R -



Three committee meetings were convened during the year ended
30th June 2012 and the attendances of each committee member
at these meetings are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace (Chairman) 3/3
Mr Ng Kwok Tung 3/3
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert 3/3
Executive Director
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 3/3

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee has also approved the remuneration
and the discretionary bonuses of the executive Directors
by reference to their respective levels of responsibilities and
performance, industry benchmarks, prevailing market conditions
and the Group’s financial performance and delegated the
executive Directors to determine and formulate the remuneration
policy for the senior management of the Group. No Director was
involved in deciding his or her own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference was established by the Company on 15th July
2005. The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr Leung Shiu Ki,
Albert (as Chairman), Mr Ng Kwok Tung and Mr Ma Chun Fung,
Horace, and an executive Director, namely Mr Lam Shiu Ming,
Daneil. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board on
a regular basis and making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes as well as assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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Two committee meetings were convened during the year ended
30th June 2012 and the attendances of each committee member
at these meetings are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert (Chairman) 2/2
Mr Ng Kwok Tung 2/2
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace 2/2
Executive Director
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 2/2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 11th
October 1999. The written terms of reference, which describe
the authority and duties of the Audit Committee, were prepared
and adopted with reference to “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee”, published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and in accordance with the Code. The Audit
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr Ng Kwok Tung (as Chairman), Dr Leung
Shiu Ki, Albert and Mr Ma Chung Fung, Horace. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee meets, at least twice a year, with the
external auditor to discuss any area of concern during the audit
or review. The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
review of the Group’s financial information and oversight of the
Group’s financial and accounting practices, internal control and
risk management. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim
and final results of the Group.

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30th June 2012 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Three committee meetings were convened during the year ended
30th June 2012 and the attendances of the each committee
member at these meetings are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr Ng Kwok Tung (Chairman) 3/3
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert 3/3
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace 3/3

The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement
of the external auditor, the revised accounting standards,
the financial year 2011/2012 interim consolidated financial
statements and annual consolidated financial statements. The
Audit Committee also reviewed the internal control systems and
met with the external auditor to discuss with them the nature
and scope of the audit and reporting obligation prior to the
commencement of and after the completion of the audit.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors have the overall responsibility for internal control
and set appropriate policies. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal control.

In compliance with the code provision C.2.1 of both the
Former Code and the New Code and to further improve the
effectiveness of its internal control, the Company engaged an
independent accounting firm (the “Consultant”) to conduct a
review of the effectiveness of the system control of the Group
for the year ended 30th June 2012. All findings for improvement
and recommendations made by the Consultant, which require
management’s attention, have been properly addressed and
implemented by the Company during the year.
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The system of internal control aims to help achieving the
Group’s business objectives, effective and efficient operations,
safeguarding assets and maintaining proper accounting records
for provision of reliable financial information. The design of the
system is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement in the consolidated financial
statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate
all risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives. No material
suspected frauds and irregularities, internal control deficiencies
or infringement of relevant regulations and rules have come to
the attention of the Board to cause the Board to believe that the
system of internal control is inadequate.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
and ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30th June 2012 have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standard and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 50 and 51 of this
annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external auditor
of the Company by the shareholders at the last annual general
meeting of the Company. For the year ended 30th June 2012,
the remuneration payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out
as follows:
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RARBZ E—ERRBFAEG  BEBIKE
SRANES A ERREZER/RRRZIMNEZE
fl-BE—T——FXA=ZTHLEFE X
TRERIBIGEGFTEMEBHAMZBEMT

Fees payable

Services rendered Fr iR 15 BR 75 B &R
HK$’'000

BET T

Audit services EiTEH 845
Non-audit services EFEFEA 66
911

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 30th June 2012, the Company has
adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiries, all
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a communication
channel between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and
at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting. The Board may whenever it thinks fit
convene special general meetings.
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The procedures for Shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong, to require a special general meeting to
be convened by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the
Board

The enquiries must be in writing with the detail contact
information of the requisitionists and deposited with the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

The procedures for Shareholders to put
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting, or a
special general meeting, the shareholders should submit a written
notice of those proposals with the detail contact information
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong (the “Share Registrar”)
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the shareholders
concerned at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting varies according to the nature of the proposal, as
follows:

° At least 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company
in a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Notg)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company in
a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 20 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting.

Note: Business Day means any day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

According to the Bye-laws, no person other than a retiring
Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election,
be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless a notice in writing signed by a shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election as a Director and also a
notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
(including that’s person’s biographical details as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules) shall be lodged with the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong or the Share Registrar’s place of business in Hong Kong
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provided that the minimum length of the period, during which
such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven days and that
(if the notices are submitted after the dispatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

If such notice(s) are received less than 10 clear Business Days
prior to the date of such general meeting, the Company will need
to consider the adjournment of such general meeting in order to
allow Shareholders 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) of the proposal.

Note: Business Day means any day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of the
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted by a show of hands.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION
POLICY

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy to set out the Company’s procedures in providing the
shareholders and the investment community with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, in order to enable the shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow the
shareholders and the investment community to engage actively
with the Company.
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The board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”) submit their
report together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of Universe International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30th
June 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 55.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2011: same) and any special cash dividend (2011: HK$1.24
cents per ordinary share).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, no charitable and other donation was made by
the Group (2011: HK$2,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out on page 163.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 30th June 2012
amounted to HK$56,025,000 (2011: HK$54,286,000) including
contributed surplus of HK$53,342,000 (2011: HK$51,852,000),
which is only distributable subject to conditions as set out in Note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 164.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities during
the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 26th November 2003, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Details of the Scheme
are as follows:

(@)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant share options to selected Participants (as defined
below) as incentive and/or rewards for their contribution
and support to the Group and any invested entity.

Participants of the Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contribution and support to the Group and any
invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a
“Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for
shares.

(i) any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity (individually, an
“Employee”);

(i)  any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its

subsidiary or any invested entity;

(i) any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any invested entity;

(iv) any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

39

BEFEBEERERAA
ZECZFFR

Report of the Directors
EFEEREE

B ERE

RER-_ZFZ=F+—-A-+ARTZER
BFAE LRBZ -HEBRRZR ARFIR
BEREMARIMBRATE ([BRF])E
L RAN (T EMARRN]) B R RIR A —
RERER S ([ E]) - BAEsr 8l
ZAEESINT

(a) EEAIESTEIZ B
RO 812 B 0 READ R T HEH
BEZSEAEERTOEHBR
B EAREARERREERY AR
R 2 BB I -

b) BREFENSEA
EF R BEEEBRN AT AR
AR T IR A B R E R R AR

XFEZ2EA(T2EA])  EEABR
BRI -

EAERME AR S AEA R
TR IEEBES @%(1
RR)ARTA EAEMNEBLQ
jfiﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁfZ&ﬂﬁmi%
(ERIESMEE])

iy AR EAERIEE ARSI
EEREZIMIFENTES (BB
VIEHITESE)

iy AEBEMKERAISRTARESR
B2 e R REHtES:

vy AEBEXEMREEBZEME
=



Universe International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012

Report of th

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

Directors

(1]

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the Group
or any invested entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
invested entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any invested entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
any member of the Group or any invested entity; and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to business
operation or business arrangements of the Group,
and for the purposes of the Scheme, the share
options may be granted to any company wholly
owned by one or more persons belonging to any of
the above classes of the Participants.

Maximum number of share options
available for issue under the Scheme

U)

(i)

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share option
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other schemes for the time being of the
Company shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. Share options lapsed or cancelled
for the time being of the Company shall not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the said 30%
limit; and

The maximum number of share options available
for issue under the Scheme is 171,177,037 shares,
representing 10% of the total number of the issued
shares of the Company as at the date of the annual
general meeting held on 29th November 2011 (the
“2011 AGM”), in which the shareholders approved the
refreshment of the scheme mandate limit.
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(d)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Scheme and any other schemes for the time
being of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to
the date of grant to each grantee must not exceed 1% of
the aggregate number of shares for the time being in issue.

Remaining life and exercisable period of
the share options

There is no general requirement that a share option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised
but the Board is empowered to impose at its discretion
any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular share option. A share option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during a period of 10 years commencing on the Date of
Grant and expiring on the last day of the said 10-year
period.

Payment on acceptance of the share
options offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on acceptance
of the share options offer.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme shall
be a price notified by the Board to a Participant to whom
any offer of the grant of a share option is made and shall
be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant which must be a business day; and (i) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant, provided that
the subscription price shall not be lower than the nominal
value of a share.
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the 2011 AGM, the
Company approved the refreshment of the scheme mandate
limit, which is 10% of the total number of the issue shares of the
Company as at the date of the 2011 AGM, under the Scheme.
After the refreshment of the scheme mandate limit, the total
number of share options available for issue under the Scheme
as at the date of the 2011 AGM was 171,177,037, which
represented 10% of the total number of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of the 2011 AGM.

On 27th June 2012, the Company granted 34,235,403 share
options, which represented 2% of the total number of the
issued shares of the Company as at 30th June 2012, to certain
Directors and employees of the Group at the subscription price
of HK$0.067 per share option which were vested immediately
and exercisable for a three-year period between 27th June 2012
and 26th June 2015 (both days inclusive). Each share option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of
the Company. None of the share options has been exercised or
cancelled for the period from 27th June 2012 to 30th June 2012.
There was no share option outstanding prior to 27th June 2012
under the Scheme.
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The Directors individually and other employees of the Company ARG ZEARNEENEMESARXNFEARE
in aggregate had the following personal interest in share options 4285335 5 BE A% 4 LA SR BE AR A Bl i (D 2 (8l AR 2
to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company during the year  #AT :
and at the end of the year:
Number of
share  Number of Number of Number of Market
Period  Price per options share share share  value per
during share on outstanding options options options share on
which share exercise of at the granted  exercised outstanding grant of
Date of  options are share  beginning during during  atthe end share
grant  exercisable options  of the year the year the year  of the year options

It
BRER REUR rEE FEE  RERE 4
B Atz HEITEZ BHiz Bz HRfEz  BRER

Participants 1IN BHAH TiEE  BRiER BREHE BRENE BREYE BEREZE Z8RTE
HK$ HK$

Executive Directors ~ $H{TE%E
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, WNR & 27/6/2012  27/6/2012 - 0.067 - 17,117,703 - 17,117,703 0.064
Daneil 26/6/2015
Mr Yeung Kim Piu BRlgxE 27/6/2012  27/6/2012 - 0.067 - 4,279,425 - 4,279,425 0.064

26/6/2015
Chief Operation BEAH
Officer
Mr Lam Siu Keung, B E 27/6/2012  27/6/2012 - 0.067 - 8,558,850 - 8558850 0.064
Alin 26/6/2015
Eligible employee REEEEH 27/6/2012  27/6/2012 - 0.067 - 4,279,425 - 4,279,425 0.064
working under T#z 26/6/2015
employment RERES
contracts

- 34,235,403 - 34,235,403
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The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)
Mr YEUNG Kim Piu

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr NG Kwok Tung

Dr LEUNG Shiu Ki, Albert

Mr MA Chun Fung, Horace

Mr Yeung Kim Piu, Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert and Mr Ma Chun
Fung, Horace will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with 87(1) and
87(2) of the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation as specified
by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the above independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company is
satisfied that they are independent as such.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company,
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT
SECURITIES

As at 30th June 2012, the interests of each of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares of the Company
(within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”) which were
required to be (a) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interest which any such Director was taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of Part XV of the SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) were as follows:

45

BEFEBEERERAA
ZECZFFR

Report of the Directors
EEEREE

EEZEAGHESR

B a IS mARM 0 MEEI AR
ACHERAR HMBARAXKFARMB LA
BE2EET L NEE B S F R EARE DAL
B HAREXRGAEEFEMESTERNE
BERAREMEREREDZZAH-

EERHFUFHER

e SN ES D R L
BF 2 LRS-

EERIETHAERKAE
SREFRSZER

RZZB-—ZFXA=+H AREZEERE
ZTBABRARR (F&REEBEHIE571
ERHFNMPEGRD ([BHFRBEEAN]) )
Bt A R ss - 7B (QIRIBE 7 MR 1R P
EXVELETRED EMG AR T LI (B
RRERER 7 MG RD 2 ZFHERRR
SR DA ) )R ENARBIRE
% REIE GO EXVENE352{6 B 7 2 Bt A
% (ORBLETETAERETERRING
A <PRI ([EAESFRIL) 218 AN A &) KRB AP 40
T



Universe International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012

Directors

(1]

Report of th

(1) Interests in issued shares

(1) REZBITRID 2=

Number of
the Company’s Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held shareholding
S NN
EEna EHEEE R & B HEEDL
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Founder of a discretionary trust (Note) 859,131,705 50.19%
Daneil
M/NERSE A& —JARREFZEIA (i)

Note: The trustee of the discretionary trust is Central Core
Resources Limited which owns the entire issued share
capital of Globalcrest Enterprises Limited which in turn is
interested in 859,131,705 shares of the Company.

(2) Interests in underlying shares

Certain Directors have been granted share options under
the Scheme, details of which are set in the section “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME” above.

All interests in the shares of the Company were long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2012, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the share, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations which were
required to be (a) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests which they were deemed or taken to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the Directors
and chief executives of the Company (including their spouse
and children under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or had
been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares
(or warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its
associated corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the
SFO.
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In addition, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, its subsidiaries, its associated company or
its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares in or
debentures of, the Company or its associated corporation.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 30th June 2012, shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO were as
follows:
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Number of
the Company’s Percentage of
Name of shareholders shares held shareholding
B & TE AT RBEE HERESL
Globalcrest Enterprises Limited (Note) (5#) 859,131,705 50.19%
Central Core Resources Limited (Note) ( #£) 859,131,705 50.19%

Note: The entire issued share capital of Globalcrest Enterprises Limited
is held by Central Core Resources Limited, the trustee of a
discretionary trust under which certain immediate family members
of Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil are discretionary objects.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in the
shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2012, no other person
has any interests or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
and there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 21.02%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 61.29%
Sales

— the largest customer 16.42%
— five largest customers in aggregate 41.25%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

There are other related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 30th June 2012, all of which
constituted exempted connected transactions for the Company
under the Listing Rules, the details of these transactions are
disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Apart from the above, there are other related party transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 30th June 2012,
certain of which constituted exempted connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules, the details of these
transactions are disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued shares at 30th June 2012.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th September 2012
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&
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF UNIVERSE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Universe International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to
162, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 30th June 2012, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 30th June 2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28th September 2012
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mEEEREBER

As at 80th June 2012 RZ-E——#FNA=1+H

2012 2011
—E-CfF —E——%F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M 5 BRI T BT T
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Leasehold land HE i 6 3,195 3,277
Property, plant and equipment Y% #eEs s 7 16,570 17,845
Investment properties "EYE 8 9,100 6,100
Other intangible assets HEEREE 9 1,858 1,858
Film rights and B ik &
films in progress BUER 2 B 5 10 120,756 66,467
Film deposits ?E TEl® 33,377 32,502
Deferred income tax assets RIEMSIHERE 23(a) 564 625
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHENESREE 12 - 1,275
Deposits paid Bzl & - 1,730
185,420 131,679
Current assets MEEE
Inventories & 15 3,384 3,619
Accounts receivable JE UK BR 3R 14 16,702 50,518
Deposits paid, prepayments and BfEI &« B FIE
other receivables Ko H At & W R IR 31,237 6,810
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEE % 16 71,076 79,432
122,399 140,379
Total assets BEE 307,819 272,058
EQUITY W=
Capital and reserves attributable &2 FHEZFZFEA
to the equity holders of BB AR HE
the Company
Share capital % < 17 34,235 32,492
Share premium A1 4 B 19(a) 135,293 127,211
Other reserves H A R 19(a) 3,094 821
Retained earnings REE BT 61,927 79,379
Total equity HERE 234,549 239,903
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As at 30th June 2012 R-ZE——#xA=+H

2012 2011
—E-CfF —E——%F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Mo e BT T BT
LIABILITIES &aE
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEMSHRARE 23(a) 583 640
Current liabilities =Rt
Accounts payable FETER R 21 4,302 4,529
Other payables and H b IE R
accrued charges EEr S 7,739 8,511
Deposits received BUET & 59,547 17,400
Amount due to the ultimate FES ER A4 R A 7
holding company IR 20 1 1
Obligations under finance leases B & E e 22 15 71
Taxation payable FERTLIR 1,083 1,003
72,687 81 518
Total liabilities Bafg 73,270 32,155
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 307,819 272,058
Net current assets mBEEFE 49,712 108,864
Total assets less current liabilites BEERB G &E 235,132 240,543

On behalf of the Board

AEERD

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Yeung Kim Piu
Director Director

/R B &I 3

BF EFE

The notes on pages 58 to 162 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
EHNFEBAEF162A 2 M RULFLRE M BE|mMER 2 —#BH
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As at 80th June 2012 RZ-E——#FNA=1+H

2012 2011
—_E—°fF —E——%
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M BT T BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries By =N EC g <) 11 72,096 70,606
Deferred income tax assets BEEHEE 23(b) 273 327
72,369 70,933
Currentassets  =®m&xE
Amounts due from subsidiaries i N ENGIE /S 20 154,347 144,546
Prepayments and other receivables TEAT R IE I E b g UK
KIB 128 127
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLFEY 16 79 40
154,554 144,713
Total assets ~ @&xE 226,923 215,646
EQUITY HE 2
Capital and reserves attributable ZA2AFEZHEA
to the equity holders of BB AR HE
the Company
Share capital &z 17 34,235 32,492
Share premium % (7 % (B 19(b) 135,293 127,211
Other reserves H M E 19(b) 53,342 51,852
Retained earnings RE&F 2,683 2,434
Total equity YERE 225,553 213,989
Current liabilites  »#®as
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT B A R R 20 29 29
Accrued charges fEET X 1,341 1,628
Total liabilities wmafs 1,370 1,657
Total equity and liabilities BEZRERE 226,923 215,646
Net current assets mBEEFE 153,184 143,056
Total assets less current liabilities #EZEERRE&E 225,553 213,989

On behalf of the Board

EEEgW

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Yeung Kim Piu
Director Director

B 15 85

EF EE

The notes on pages 58 to 162 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
BHNEBAEF162A 2 M BULFLRE M MK — 3B °
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For the year ended 30th June 2012 #EZ -F— —FNHA=+HIFFZE

2012 2011
—E-CfF —E——%F
Note(s) HK$’000 HK$'000
M 5 BRI T BT
(Note 41)
(B 7E41)
Revenue g 5 75,881 131,256
Cost of revenue & p®N 24 & 25 (59,079) (111,189)
Impairment losses of film rights and ~ BERENEE T2 2
film deposits REEE 24 (1,470) (12,453)
Selling expenses HEE A 24 & 25 (3,124) (2,818)
Administrative expenses THREHR 24 & 25 (28,275) (26,893)
Other income E A 26 958 1,045
Other gains — net Has—F5E 27 & 30 513 5,406
Increase in fair value of investment WEYE 2 ANTE
properties 30 8 500 131
Other operating expenses Hihg&E & A 24 (4,350) (5,162)
Finance income WA 28 923 559
Loss before income tax W B 45 i A &5 18 (17,523) (20,118)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfie s, (ZH) 29 71 (765)
Loss attributable to the equity PN
holders of the Company BFAEANELER (17,452) (20,883)
Other comprehensive income: Hitt = myrss:
Gain recognized directly in equity EEREDERHEF - =
Total comprehensive loss for the 7<%\ §]
year attributable to the equity ERFEAEN
holders of the Company FEZHEGIEER (17,452) (20,883)
Loss per share for loss F: A NN
attributable to the equity ERFEEAEL
holders of the Company during BiEZzESREE
the year (expressed in HK cent) (LABALET)
- basic —EK 32 (1.03) (1.29)
— diluted —#E 32 (1.03) (1.29)
Dividend per share BRER
(expressed in HK cent) (LA ALET)
Special cash dividend FERIER & I B 33 - 1.24

The notes on pages 58 to 162 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEEZBEX

For the year ended 30th June 2012 #E 2 —F— —F A=+ HILFZE
Attributable to the equity holders of the Company
ARNAERHEARERS
Share Share Other Retained Total
capital premium reserves earnings equity
%S B ik (8 Htnfkis REEF b 5]
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i zE BB BB BB BB BB
Balance at 1st July 2010 RIE—F%
tA—B & 32,492 127,211 821 120,407 280,931
Comprehensive loss ~ 2@&®
Loss for the year EREER - - - (20,883) (20,883)
Total comprehensive loss FE2EBRARE
for the year - - - (20,883) (20,883)
Transaction with owners BBEBAZRGE
Special cash dividend KRR ERE - - - (20,145) (20,145)
Total transaction with owners HBEEAZBL5H - - - (20,145) (20,145)
Balance at 30th June 2011 RIE——%
~NA=t+HZz&H 32,492 127,211 821 79,379 239,903
Comprehensive loss £HEEE
Loss for the year FEE#R - = = (17,452) (17,452)
Other comprehensive income Hth 2 Em i
Fair value adjustment upon transfer BT RIEFERERE
from land and buildings to MEz A FEAR
investment properties 7 - - 938 - 938

Deferred income tax effect on fair value JEIEFTSH 8 M L1t &
adjustment upon transfer from land ~~ EFEBEEHEYE

and buildings to investment properties 2 ATEREzFE 23 - - (155) - (155)
Total other comprehensive income HinzENE8E - - 783 - 783
Total comprehensive loss FELEBEREHE

for the year - - 783 (17,452) (16,669)
Transaction with owners BBEBAZLSE
Placement of shares R B E 19 1,743 8,082 - - 9,825
Grant of share options BB e 18 & 19 = = 1,490 = 1,490
Total transaction with owners HBEAZHBZ 5 1,743 8,082 1,490 - 11,315
Balance at 30th June 2012 RIE-Z%

~NBEtHzZ#&H 34,235 135,293 3,094 61,927 234,549

The notes on pages 58 to 162 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GEHREREXR

For the year ended 30th June 2012 #EZ -F— —FNHA=+HIFFZE

2012 2011
—E-CfF —E——%F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
M 5 BT T BT I
Cash flows from operating activites & EFHZRERE
Cash generated from operations BEEAZRE 34 80,379 43,131
Cash flows from investing activites #ZZEFHZRERE
Purchase of property, plant and BAYZE KRR
equipment B 7 (1,340) (1,485)
Purchase of investment properties BAREYZE 8 - (5,569)
Purchase of other intangible assets BB A HthE L& &= 9 - (450)
Proceeds from disposal of property, &S #E K%
plant and equipment L2 TS 34 - 562
Increase in film deposits ES- Al Yl (875) (12,114)
Payments for film rights and B hRAE R R 2
films in progress ESH-ZNEN 10 (97,212) (45,305)
Interest received B F & 28 923 559
Net cash used in investing activities ~ & /EEFTA 2 FHE (98,504) (63,802)
Cash flows from financing activities MEZEFHNZHERE
Placement of shares f% 3 B & 19 10,024 =
Issue expense of shares placement XD ELE » 317 & A 19 (199) -
Capital element of finance THRRMEREZER
lease payments H#B1A 34 (56) (80)
Special cash dividend paid IFRIRERE 33 - (20,145)
Net cash generated from/(used in) mEESESE, (FTA)Z
financing activities FIRE 9,769 (20,225)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRREEEBWZ
equivalents b (8,356) (40,896)
Cash and cash equivalents REVNRERREEEY
at beginning of the year 79,432 120,328
Cash and cash equivalents RERRERBEEEEY
at end of the year 16 71,076 79,432

The notes on pages 58 to 162 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GEMBHmRMET

GENERAL INFORMATION

Universe International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (togethers, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in distribution of films in various videogram
formats, film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of fim
rights and leasing of investment properties.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“‘HK$'000”),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 28th September 2012.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which is a collective term referred to all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”) and
Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties
and available-for-sale financial assets, which are
carried at fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EEERHRAEE =

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 ImBLEYE (@)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The actual results may differ from these estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. The Group has adopted the new and revised
HKFRSs below, which are relevant to its operations,
in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.
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RAEMB MR M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEHHREE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 ImBLEYE (@)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTHASZE
RSB ER

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 1st January 2011
BRI (BRI A) B 752 B112010,2 B —ZET——%—H—H
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 1st January 2011
2R F245% (18] A) BEALTHE —E——%—H—H
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates 1st July 2011
for First-time Adopters
BRI FE 157 (1B5]A) BRE B R 8RN E R AE T A —E——%tH—H
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures — Transfers Financial Assets 1st July 2011
B ERFE 75 (BT A) BR-EBEeREE —E——%tHA—H
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 (Amendment)  Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement 1st January 2011
B (BRI %EHRES ERNHEESEK —T——%—H—H
‘%%ﬁﬁ/\/a\ — i
1457 (1871 A)
The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs has not led BN i3] SR ASAS FT B0 B 75 2 Rl 3 4
to any significant changes in the accounting policies applied HZERAMEHRERFTIRAN SR
in these consolidated financial statements, and has no SIERERMEREE THEZSHESE E7f
material effect on the Group’s results and financial position BHRERPREMNAEBE RGN BES
for the current or prior accounting periods reflected in these MM EE R ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%% o
consolidated financial statements.
The Group has not early adopted any new standards, AEBWERNFEAERMER-Z
amendments and interpretation of the HKFRSs which have ——Ft+tA—HRBGTHBDARE
been issued but not yet effective for the accounting period MR TSR 2 $T R ERT k2iE B
beginning 1st July 2011, details of which are set out in BT IBE AP 5E42 o

Note 42.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EESFBREE@

2.2 4rafRE

AEENGEMBERRBIEART]
MEMBHRBAREZENA=1H

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
incorporate the financial statements of the Company

and all of its subsidiaries made up to 30th June. LERYBA TS HR R o
(a) Subsidiaries (@) MIBAR

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus
costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of
the extent of any non-controlling interest. The
excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognized directly in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses (Note 2.8).
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EESFBREE@

22 SR EREE (@
(b) XREEHEE

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Jointly controlled assets

Jointly controlled assets are assets of a joint
venture over which the Group has joint control
with other venturers in accordance with
contractual arrangements and through the joint
control of which the Group has control over its
share of future economic benefits earned from
the assets.

The Group’s share of jointly controlled assets
and any liabilities incurred jointly with other
venturers are recognized in the consolidated
balance sheet and classified according to their
nature. Liabilities and expenses incurred directly
in respect of its interests in jointly controlled
assets are accounted for on an accrual basis.
Income from the sale or use of the Group’s
share of the output of the jointly controlled
assets together with its share of any expenses
incurred by the joint ventures, are recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transactions will
flow to or from the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Chairman of the
Group that makes strategic decisions.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to that segment. Segment
revenue, expenses and segment performance include
transactions between segments. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available
to other external parties for similar services. These
transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the year to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets and liabilities, cash and cash
equivalents, deferred income tax assets, deferred
income tax liabilities, taxation payable and interest
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation
currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available for sale are analyzed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortized cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in
amortized cost are recognized in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are
recognized in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EEERHRAEE =

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly warehouses and
offices. Leasehold land classified as financial lease
and all other property, plant and equipment is stated
at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include
transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EEERHRAEE =

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 2.5 W5 R MR (8)

(Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease
commences amortization from the time when the
land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortization on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

Leasehold land classified Shorter of useful life or

as finance lease lease term
Buildings Shorter of useful life or
lease term

Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful life or
lease term

Machinery and equipment 3 — 5 years
Others 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognized within “other gains — net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EESFBREE@

2.6 Investment properties 2.6 WEWZE

Property that is held for long-term rental yields
and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated group, is classified as investment
property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. These valuations of the investment
properties are performed in accordance with the
guidance issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases
in the light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property. Some of those outflows are recognized
as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in
respect of land classified as investment property;
others, including contingent rent payments, are not
recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

[f an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its

cost for accounting purposes.

2.7 Leased assets

(@) Operating lease

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payment made under
the leases are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over
the accounting periods covered by the lease
term except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the accounting period

in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Leased assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Operating lease (Continued)

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is stated in the consolidated
balance sheet as “Leasehold land” and is
amortized to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease term except where
the property is classified as an investment

property.

Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in current and non-
current borrowings. The interest element of the
finance cost is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over
the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The
investment properties acquired under finance
leases are carried at their fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortization, and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Non-financial assets
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment of each reporting date.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held-for-
sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell if their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Other intangible assets

The club membership is carried at cost less
impairment losses.

The club membership has an indefinite useful life
and is thus not subject to amortization. The club
membership is tested at least annually for impairment
and is reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

2.11 Financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables, and
available for sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(a) Classification (Continued)

()

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise “accounts and
other receivables” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated balance
sheet (Notes 2.17 and 2.18).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.
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FEMBHRERMET

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognized on the trade-date —
the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognized at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognized when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognized in equity are included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as “other gains — net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as part of other
income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortized cost
(Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognized impairment loss is recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EEERHRAEE =
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(b) FMEREHEZEE

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b) Assets classified as available for

sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. For debt securities,
the Group uses the criteria referred to in (a)
above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current
less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognized in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognized in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss
is reversed through the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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EEMBHRERMET

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realizable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of all production overhead.
[t excludes borrowing costs. Net realizable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.15 Film rights and films in progress

(a)

(b)

Film rights

Film rights comprise fees paid and payable
under agreements and direct expenses
incurred during the production of films, for
the reproduction and/or distribution of films
in various videogram formats, film exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film titles.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of film rights is amortized over the
shorter of the underlying license period and
their useful lives, with reference to projected
revenues.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Cost includes
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. Cost of films is transferred to film rights
upon completion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Film rights and films in progress
(Continued)

(c)

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, both internal and
external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication
that assets included in film rights and films in
progress are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amount of such assets is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognized to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

2.16 Film deposits

Film deposits comprise deposits paid for the
acquisition of film rights and deposits paid to
production houses, artistes and others prior to the
production of films. The balance payable under
agreements for acquisition and production of film
rights is disclosed as a commitment. Provision for
film deposits is made to the extent that they are
not expected to generate any future revenue for the
Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Accounts and other receivables

Accounts receivable are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of accounts and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Accounts and other receivables are recognized initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of accounts and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the accounts receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within ‘other operating expenses’. When a receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for accounts receivable. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against ‘other operating expenses’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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GAEMBHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEFHREE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Cash and cash equivalents 218 e RIREEFEEBY
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, RekBEeSFENERETFRRS
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term RITAANFRMREBE A=A
highly liquid investments with original maturities of S THEMEES REERE -

three months or less.

2.19 Share capital 2.19 IR AR
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. LR DB R -
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue ER TR AR ok B AR i B B A 2 iR
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a R AR IR IBR A ERF I A
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. F 1S 3038 2 R IE ©

2.20 Accounts payable 2.20 FEfTBR X
Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods ERNERABERELEEHTEE
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary 72 Sk AR TS T e SE T RO 75 - tn e
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable NEFOZNBHE—FHUA
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due (D EELEEAT - AR ER&
within one year or less (or in the normal operating Bef)  HEoBaREasE - 4hl
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are DEAIERBEE-

presented as non-current liabilities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEESHRAE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax 221 S HA KIEEFT IS 74 (&)

(Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (b) EEERHEH

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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FEEMBHRERMET

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognized when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognized until the time
of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to Mandatory Provident
Fund in Hong Kong, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The pension plan is funded by payments
from employees and by the relevant Group
companies.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed
as incurred and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Share-based compensation

(a) Equity-settled share-based
compensation transactions

The Group operates a share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity
receives services from employees (and including
Directors) as consideration for share options
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the share options is recognized as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

o excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting

conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save).

85

HAEMBHRMEE

2 EESHBREE @

2.23 R 19 ¥ B

(a)

LA Bz #E 45 B Z B 6 SR M
X5

REERE —ERND MM T
B EZERT  ERERE
B (BEER)ERARAZ
PR AHE 2 1018 - 1B BARIAARES
T 2 B AT ER
RABMA-JERRAZES
BNSEMBRTRREZD
FEERE :

o  BREEMWMBERBEGMN
(MEBZBE)

o  TEEEMAIEmSERE
BBIRTMEEZF
Z(margn HE
BEREERBITER
ERHARETER):

M

o  BIETMIEFEIKME
TE (MR TE TR
P



Universe International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2012

Nr_‘otes to the Con§plidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRERMET

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Share-based compensation (Continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share-based
compensation transactions
(Continued)

Non-market performance and service
conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of share options that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognized over
the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services
in advance of the grant date and therefore
the grant date fair value is estimated for the
purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period
and grant date. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of share options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance
and service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

When the share options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Share-based compensation (Continued)

(b) Share-based compensation
transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognized over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity financial statements.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: (i) the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; (ii) it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
(iii) the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provision are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognized as
interest expense.
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RAEMB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities.

The Group recognizes revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities as described below.

(@) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and the title has passed.

(b) Income from the licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights is recognized upon the delivery of
the pre-recorded audio visual products and the
materials for video features including the master
tapes to the customers, in accordance with the
terms of the underlying contracts.

(c)  Film exhibition income is recognized when the
film is shown and the right to receive payment is
established.

(d) Operating lease and other rental income is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

(e) Interest income is recognized on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the interest
rates applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognized as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The policies for
managing these risks are summarized below.

(@) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect
to the United States dollars (“‘US$”) and
Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognized assets and
liabilities. Hong Kong dollars is pegged to
the United States dollars and thus foreign
exchange exposure is considered to be
minimal.
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EEMBHRERMET

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets (except short-term bank
deposits) and liabilities. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its interest-bearing
assets including short-term bank deposits
and other bank deposit.

As at 30th June 2012, if the interest rate
increased/decreased by 50 basis points
with all other variables held constant, loss
attributable to the equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 30th June
2012 would have been approximately
HK$27,000 lower/higher (2011:
HK$43,000), mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest income on the short-term
bank deposits.

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and
cash equivalents and deposits with bank and
financial institutions, as well as credit exposures
to customers, including outstanding receivables
and committed transactions. Management has
policies in place to monitor the exposures to

these credit risks on an on-going basis.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HHEAREE @

(Continued)

3.1 B s b A &= ()
(b) EERERE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

For banks and financial institutions, deposits

ERITRPBEHBETE - T3

are only placed with reputable banks. For credit RIEFERRERFEEBNRIT - ER
exposures with customers, the Group has EEMEERRE  ANEE

put in place policies to ensure that provision
of services to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of accounts
receivable falls within the recorded allowances.

The Group granted the credit limit to two (2011:
three) debtors as at 30th June 2012. The table
below shows the credit limit and balance of the
debtors at the respective balance sheet dates.

HITE TR UWRRAEE
MEERENEPRHRS
EAGSEEHHEEFPNEE
ARETTRHE - RIBEAKE
L{Ei“‘%ﬁ P& W BR R 2 WU BR A
BRORBEIA-

R-—TE—=—FXA=+H"
AEERTEERETME (=
T——F: =) ERERE
F-TRBERESIHEELEHE
B ARERKEREFH :ff
[R BB AN 45 64

As at 30th June
WAB=+H
2012 2011
—E-CZf —2——F
Credit limit Utilized Credit limit Utilized
FERE gl EERE B
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHT T BT BETT BETT
Counterparty RHEAH
Customer A ZFEA - - 3,000 1,697
Customer B ZFB 330 57 330 125
Customer C ZFC 300 147 300 219

No credit limits were exceeded during the FEREHA - WEEEBHT

reporting period, and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
these counterparties.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit quality of financial assets that
are neither past due nor impaired can be
assessed by reference to the counterparty’s
default history. The current portion of accounts
receivable, which is not impaired is analyzed
below:

3 HHEKRERE @

3.1 R REZE (&)

(b) EEERE (&)
KBS R EN IS EE
CEEEETNRBRSHS
B EHER SRR AE ST o
S 1B &) B EA 1 L B 2K 4T
—F :

As at 30th June

NANB=+H
2012 2011
—E——f [ —
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT I
Accounts receivable JE U BR =X
New customers MEP
(less than 12 months) (Lr12@A) 211 63
Existing customers REEE P
(more than 12 months) (Z12f@A8) 1,571 512
Total HE 1,782 575

As at 30th June 2012, accounts receivable of
HK$15,933,000 (2011: HK$49,943,000) were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. The ageing
analysis of these accounts receivable by due
dates is as follows:
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HHAREE @
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 R REREZ @)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERBE (&)
2012 2011
—EF-fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T S IT
Up to 90 days BN ERZ90 R 8,269 6,900
91 days to 180 days 91H £180H 4,030 7,810
Over 180 days 180H LA £ 2,621 35,233
14,920 49,943
The table below shows the Group’s and the TRETAEERARTR
Company’s cash and cash equivalents and HEA RERESEEY
bank deposits with listed financial institutions at RAF RS £ B 5 i 2 6R
balance sheet dates. TR
2012 2011
—E-°fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T B IT
Group A&
Cash and bank deposits with TR Em I 2
listed financial institutions e MIRITIFER 71,076 79,432
Company Vi /N
Cash and cash equivalents with ~ TF R _E T BF#5#E ~
listed financial institutions RekReEEY 79 40
None of the terms of financial assets which are REBEEZZE—Z—F A=+
past due or impaired have been renegotiated BEFERN THESREE
during the year ended 30th June 2012 (2011: 2 HBR A E B H B RE M
same). LEHpE (ZF——F:
@) o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk
The Group manages its liquidity risk by

maintaining sufficient cash and monitoring the
liquidity requirements from time to time.

The table below analyses the Group’s and
the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining
period from the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

HAEMBHRMEE

3 HHEKRERE @

3.1 R REZ= (&)
(c) REBMEEZEME (&)

Less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years Total
1E)TF 1226 ) 2B5F 5EN E k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT
Group &
At30thJune 2012  RZE-Z%
~A=tH
Accounts payable FERERR 4,302 - - - 4,302
Other payables and EthERFER
accrued charges gt 7,739 = = = 7,739
Obligations under BEREAE
finance leases 15 - - - 15
Amount due o the B REERAT
ultimate holding TE
company 1 - - = 1
At 30th June 2011 RIF——%
~A=tH
Accounts payable FERERR 4,529 - - - 4,529
Other payables and Hft T 5E R
accrued charges BT 8,511 - - - 8,511
Obligations under BEMEAE
finance leases 71 - - = 71
Amount due to the R SRR AR
ultimate holding U
company 1 - - = 1
Company Y. YN
At30thJune 2012  RZF-Z%
~A=t+H
Amount due to S EAEE
subsidiaries 29 — - - 29
Accrued charges JERT i 1,341 - - - 1, 341
At 30th June 2011 RZF——%
~A=+H
Amount due to NG
subsidiaries 29 - - - 29
Accrued charges JERT i 1,628 - - - 1,628

At 30th June 2012, the Group had no
borrowing facilities.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as long term borrowings
(including obligations under finance leases) divided
by total capital. Total capital is calculated as “total
equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the year ended 30th June 2012, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from 2011, was to
maintain a lower gearing ratio. The gearing ratio at
30th June 2012 fell to almost zero (2011: 0.03%).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3 MHEREE @

3.3 AN FEME

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyzes financial instruments carried
at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

The carrying value less impairment provision of
receivables and carrying value of payables are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values.

Effective 1st July 2009, the Group adopted the
amendment to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments
that are measured in the consolidated balance sheet
at fair value, this requires disclosure of fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 30th June

3 HHEKRERE @

3.3 A EMGE &)

FRETAEBAEN R FRR =
T —EXASHANENAT

2012. He
Level 3 Total
%38 Fb L]
HK$’000 HK$’000
Assets BE BT BT
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHENEREE
— Equity securities —EEEH 3,005 3,005
Provision for impairment of available- At £ &€ K & gh & &=
for-sale financial assets 2B (3,005) (3,005)
Total assets BEE - -

[f one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include other techniques, such as
discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 30th June 2012:

HAEMBHRMEE

3 HHEKRERE @

3.3 A FEGE ')
TREREE-_E——F A=+
BELtFEFEIEemIANES):

Available-for-sale

financial assets Total

AHEHENEMEE b

HK$’000 HK$'000

Assets EiE BT BT

At 1st July 2011 RZE——F+tH—H 1,275 1,275

Additions N 1,730 1,730
Provision for impairment of AP ENEREEZ

available-for-sale VIR
financial assets (3,005) (8,005)

At 30th June 2012

NZE——FA=1H
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(@) Impairment of film rights, films in
progress and film deposits

The Group assesses annually whether the film rights,
films in progress and film deposits have suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2. Such annual assessment is
performed specifically for each film and film deposit
at each balance date with reference to the cast
or scale of each film, current market conditions
and each film deposit recipient’s reputation, trade
history and current financial position. According to
the management’s cash inflow forecast in respect
of each film title and realization of each film deposit,
an impairment loss of HK$1,470,000 (2011:
HK$12,453,000) was recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income to reduce
the carrying amounts of certain film rights and film
deposits to their recoverable amounts. If projected
cash inflow from these fiims were to deteriorate,
additional provision for impairment may be required.

As at 30th June 2012, the carrying value of
film rights, films in progress and film deposits
amounted to approximately HK$154,133,000 (2011:
HK$98,969,000).
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 FBREstEERFIE @
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Provision for impairment of accounts
receivable

The provision policy for accounts receivable of the
Group is based on the evaluation of recoverability
of those receivables and management’s judgement.
A considerable judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realization of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history and repayment pattern of each
customer. During the year, an impairment losses
of HK$142,000 (2011: nil) was recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If
the financial conditions of these customers were to
deteriorate, additional provision for impairment may
be required. As at 30th June 2012, the carrying value
of accounts receivable amounted to approximately
HK$16,702,000 (2011: HK$50,518,000).

Amortization of film rights

The Group is required to estimate the projected
revenue of the film rights based on the shorter of the
underlying license period and their economic lives in
order to ascertain the amount of amortization charges
for each reporting period. The appropriateness of the
amortization estimate requires the use of judgement
and estimates with reference to the prevailing and
future market conditions and the expected cash flow
pattern of the projected revenue. Changes in these
estimates and assumptions could have a material
effect on the amortization expenses.
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FEEMBHRERMET

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d) Estimated valuation of investment

properties

In determining the fair value, the valuer has based
on property valuation techniques which involve,
inter alia, certain estimates including comparable
sales in the relevant market, current market rents
for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates and expected
future market rents. In relying on the valuation report,
management has exercised their judgement and is
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of
the current market condition.

Fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
that are not traded in an active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period. The Group has used discounted cash flow
analysis for the available-for-sale financial assets that
are not traded in active markets. Changes in these
estimates and assumptions could have a material
effect on the fair value of the available-for-sale
financial assets.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 FBREstEERFIE @
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value of available-for-sale financial e) AIEHEMNESRMEEMNA

assets (Continued)

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39
to determine when an available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired. This determination requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial
health of and short-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and
sector performance, changes in technology as well as
operational and financing cash flow.

If the declines in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets below cost were considered
significant or prolonged, additional impairment may
be required.

In view of the adverse trend of financial health and
business outlook for the investee, including factors
such as industry and sector performance as well
as operational and financing cash flow, various
operating metrics fell short of managements’ previous
expectation, therefore, management determined
the investment in available-for-sale financial assets
is impaired. The Group recorded a provision for
impairment of HK$3,005,000 (2011: nil) in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
directly for the year ended 30th June 2012.
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FEEMBHRERMET

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(M

Recognition of deferred income tax
assets

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note
2.21, deferred income tax assets are recognized
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized,
and it is measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax assets
are realized. In determining the deferred income tax
assets to be recognized, management is required
to estimate the future applicable tax rate for each
subsidiary of the Company at each tax jurisdiction
and the profitability of each subsidiary, so as to
estimate the future utilization of tax losses. Any
difference between these estimates and the actual
outcome will impact the Group’s result in the period
in which the actual outcome is determined.

Recognition of share-based
compensation expense

The Group has applied the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model to determine the total fair value of the
share options granted. Highly subjective estimates
and assumptions are required to be made in
determining the parameters for applying the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model, including the estimates
and assumptions of the risk-free interest rate, the
expected stock price volatility of the underlying shares
and the expected life of the share options.
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HAEMBHRMEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 FBREstEERFIE @
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(¢)

Recognition of share-based
compensation expense (Continued)

Changes in these estimates and assumptions could
have a material effect on the determination of the
fair value of the share options, which may in turn
significantly impact the determination of the share-
based compensation expense.

During the year ended 30th June 2012, share-
based compensation expense of HK$1,489,685 was
recognized (Note 18).

Classification of joint arrangements

The Group has entered into joint arrangements to
produce and distribute television series and films.
The Group has participating interests ranging from
29% to 87% in these joint arrangements. The Group
has joint control over these arrangements as under
the contractual agreements, unanimous consent is
required from all parties to the agreements for all
relevant activities. The Group’s joint arrangements
involve the joint control by the venturers of the assets
contributed to the joint arrangement and dedicated
to the purposes of the joint arrangement. The
assets are used to obtain benefits for the venturers.
Each venturer may take a share of the output from
the assets and each bears an agreed share of
the expenses incurred. These joint arrangement
do not involve the establishment of a corporation,
partnership or other entity, or a financial structure
that is separate from the venturers themselves.
The determination of the relevant activities under
jointly controlled assets requires critical accounting
judgement.
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RAEMB MR M

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Primary reporting format — business
segments

The CODM reviews the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments
based on these reports, as below:

- Distribution of films in various videogram formats

= Film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of films
rights

- Leasing of investment properties

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of segment results. This
measurement basis excludes the effects of non-recurring
expenditure from the operating segments, such as gain on
disposal of non-current assets held for sale and increase
in fair value of investment properties. Finance income
and income tax expense are not included in the result for
each operating segment that is reviewed by the CODM.
Other information provided, except as noted below, to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.

Total assets, excluding other intangible assets, available-
for-sale financial assets, deferred income tax assets,
other bank deposit, cash and cash equivalents and other
unallocated assets (including leasehold land, property,
plant and equipment, film rights and films in progress, film
deposits, deposits paid and prepayments and non-current
assets held for sale), are managed on a central basis.
These are part of the reconciliation to total balance sheet
assets.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Primary reporting format — business
segments (Continued)

The Group’s inter-segment transactions mainly consist
of licensing of film rights, which are transferred at cost.
The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Secondary reporting format — geographical
segments

Distribution of films in various videogram formats is solely
operated in Hong Kong and Macau, while the Group
operates its film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights in five (2011: six) main geographical segments.
Segment assets, capital expenditure and costs are based
on the geographical location of the assets.

There are no sales between geographical segments.
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HAEMBHERME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

0 0 0 N 7 Al =
Primary reporting format — business FEHHRE—FBOH
segments

2012
—E-Cf
Film
exhibition,
licensing and Leasing of
Sale of  sub-licensing investment
goods of film rights properties Others Elimination Group
£ 08
BHRER HiERE
HEER 1t LES b} i r£0
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Revenue iz
External sales AN HE 10,560 56,443 248 8,630 - 75,881
Inter-segment sales PHEZHE - 2,206 - 1,016 (3,312) -
10,560 58,739 248 9,646 (3,312 75,881
Results E3
Segment results before HEBRH
impairment losses LABEE (4,959) (8,463) 173 (1,222) - (14,471)
Impaiment losses of fim ~ EFIRERZEF A&
rights and film deposits ZRERRE - (1,470) - - - (1,470)
Segment results PHEE (4,959) (9,933) 173 (1,222) - (15,941)
Increase in fair value of RENEL
investment properties ATEREM - - 500 - - 500
Provision for impairment of A £81 %
avallable-for-sale financial & 2 F{EEE
assets (3,005)
Finance income BIBRA 923
Loss before income tax BREEHAER (17,523)
Income tax credlt SR & 7
Loss attributable to the equity N2 A1EZEAE A
holders of the Company Bl EE (17,452)
Assets EE
Segment assets PHEE 10,891 63,668 9,103 12,278 - 95,940
Unallocated assets FOREE 211,879
Total assets BEE 307,819
Liabilties BE
Segment liabiftes A8k 1,968 46,346 147 2,809 - 51,270
Unallocated liabilties KAEBE 22,000
Total liabiities BaRE 73,270
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5 DEER (@

Primary reporting format — business FTEDEME 0 I
segments (Continued) (&)
2012
—E-If
Film
exhibition,
licensing and Leasing of
Sale of  sub-licensing investment
goods  of film rights properties Others Group
4218
B REE ik
HEEM EXME ES Hiy r£E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BT BETT BETR
Other information Hin &R
Capital expenditures BAMHEY 1,528 172 - 59 1,759
Unallocated capital RPBEERERR
expenditures 96,793
Total capital expenditures ~ BEARERR 98,552
Depreciation and amortization #7% RS+t
of leasehold land 2B 393 82 - 46 521
Unallocated depreciation and KA E & RHEE
amortization of leasehold T2 B
land 613
Total depreciation and BRERME T
amortization of P 5
leasehold land 1,134
Amortization of film rights EYMIE & 3,525 37,928 - - 41,453
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HAEMBHERME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Primary reporting format — business

5 DEER @)

TEDERE-EBD

ik

segments (Continued) (%)
2011
-2
Film
exhibition,
licensing and Leasing of
Saleof  sub-ficensing investment
goods of fim rights properties Others Elimination Group
£ 3
Bt RER LRRE
HERR B MiE L Hih ik e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AETT BETTL BETT BETT BETT
Revenue iz
External sales AN HE 13,407 113,604 36 4,209 - 131,256
Inter-segment sales PHBEzEE - 5,600 = 150 (5,750) =
13,407 119,204 36 4,359 (6,750) 131,256
Reslts E3
Segment results before HEERH
impairment losses LABEE (4.212) 585 23 4,751) - (8,355)
Impairment losses of film ~~ BEFREREF 2
rights and fim deposits LRBEEE (79) (12,374) - - - (12,453)
Segment resuts AHEE (4,291) (11,789) 2 (4,751) - 20808)
Increase in fair value of REMEL
investment properties ATEEM - - 131 - - 131
Finance income BIRA 559
Loss before income tax BEEHAER (20,118)
Income tax expense FEHER (765)
Loss attributable to the equity N2 A1 A A
holders of the Company &R (20,883)
Assets EE
Segment assets AHEE 14,042 67,420 6,101 4,331 - 91,804
Unallocated assets RPREE 180,164
Total assets BEE 272,058
Liabilties aff
Segment liabilities AHEE 3810 18,144 149 2,663 - 24,766
Unallocated liabilties RORAE 7,389
Total liabilities BEE 32,155
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 HEMER @
Primary reporting format — business FTEDEME 0 I
segments (Continued) (&)
2011
&
Film
exhibition
licensing and Leasing of
Sale of  sub-licensing investment
goods of film rights properties Others Group
BRI
R RER HERE
HEEm BRIRE I Hith r&H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT
Other information Hin &R
Capital expenditures BEAMRX 3,369 387 5,569 10 9,33
Unallocated capital RPBEERERR
expenditures 43,474
Total capital expenditures BB AMREY 52,809
Depreciation and amortization #7& A&+
of leasehold land 2B 600 79 - 42 721
Unallocated depreciation and KA E & RHEE
amortization of leasehold T2 B
land 588
Total depreciation and BRERME T
amortization of P 5
leasehold land 1,309
Amortization of film rights B /g 2 # 5,700 87,106 - - 92,806
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Secondary reporting format — geographical

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

7 EBE # (a)
1118 55 2 25 — o5 B

segments
2012
—E--%
Total Capital
Revenue assets expenditures
W % BEE BAMMAR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT
Hong Kong and Macau B8 KR 28,790 268,054 98,552
Asia (other than Hong Kong @3l (B &
and Macau) SBFIBRAN) 46,546 39,694 -
North America JEEM 1 - -
Australia and New Zealand SR AR TR 63 - -
Europe BUM 481 59 -
Others H - 12 -
75,881 307,819 98,552
2011
—T——fF
Total Capital
Revenue assets expenditures
Wiza BEE EAMRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T AT T
Hong Kong and Macau B RIRF 43,618 220,617 52,809
Asia (other than Hong Kong 35 (&8 &
and Macau) BB AN 83,681 50,749 -
North America =M 1,706 538 -
Australia and New Zealand BN & A A 303 68 -
Europe BN 1,585 74 -
Others HAth 363 12 -
131,256 272,058 52,809
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LEASEHOLD LAND 6 HELIH
2012 2011
—E-Zf —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Group AEE BT T BT
Cost BN
At 1st July and at 30th June REtRA—BERSNA=+H 3,605 3,605
Accumulated amortization EE
At 1st July w+A—H 328 246
Amortization for the year FEHE 82 82
At 30th June RANA=+H 410 328
Net book value BRTEFE
At 30th June RANA=+8 3,195 3,277
At 1st July RntA—H 3,277 3,359

The Group’s interest in leasehold land represents prepaid

AEBGEHETHNER RN EER

operating lease payments and their net book values are ERREBEGEEFESTNAT

analyzed as follows:

2012 2011
—E-°fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Held outside Hong Kong on: EBEAINTE
Leases of between 102504 £
10 to 50 years NS 3,195 3,277
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GEMBHRRME

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 7 ME -HEBIRHZE
EQUIPMENT
Machinery
Land and Leasehold and Furniture Motor Office
Buildings  improvements equipment  and fixtures vehicles equipment Total
TitREF HENERE  HBIERR GRRRE RE  BAERRE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group FE£H EETR BET R BETR BRTT il il 8 il S
Cost AR
At 1st July 2011 RZE——%
tA-A 21,232 6,550 25,992 1,491 780 7,219 63,324
Addltions R - - 1 61 695 573 1,340
Disposals (Note 34) HE (Fizks4) - - - - - (141) (141)
Revaluation upon transferto ~ ERZRE
investment properties MEZEfR
(Note 19(a)) (Ft&E196@)) 938 - - - - - 938
Transfer to investment ERERENE
properties (2,645) - - - - - (2,645)
At 30th June 2012 RZE-Z%
~AZtH 19,525 6,550 26,003 1,552 1,475 7,11 62,816
Aoumieted depreciaion  EFE
At 1st July 2011 RZE——%F
tA-A 4,213 6,356 25,804 1,475 693 6,878 45,479
Depreciation charge HEER 455 66 123 24 110 274 1,052
Disposals (Note 34) L& (Fizks4) - - - - - (140) (140)
Transfer to investment ERERANE
properties (145) - - - - - (145)
At 30th June 2012 WZE-Z%
~NAZTH 4,583 6,422 25,927 1,499 803 7,012 46,246
Net book value REFE
At 30th June 2012 RZE-_F
~A=TH 14,942 128 76 53 672 699 16,570
At 30th June 2011 RZE——F
~AZTH 16,959 194 188 16 87 401 17,845
As at 30th June 2012, net book value of machinery and RZE——FXNA=1+H Z~E£EERE
equipment held by the Group under finance leases is BMERERA 2 s MRE 2 RERE
approximately HK$15,000 (2011: HK$71,000). X BB 15000 (ZF ——F : B

71,0007T) °
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND 7 YR KIB|RIRE@®

EQUIPMENT (continued)
Machinery
Land and Leasehold and Furniture Motor Office
Buildings  improvements equipment and fixtures vehicles equipment Total
THRET HEWREE  BERR RMREE "E BAERE #&35
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group A5E BETT RETT BB BB BB BB BETT
Cost KA
At 1st July 2010 WZE-ZF
tA-A 19,825 6,550 25,978 1,491 2,305 7217 63,366
Additions R 1,407 = 16 = = 62 1,485
Disposals (Note 34) & (FizEd) - - @ - (1,525) = (1527)
At 30th June 2011 RZT——F§
~NAZTH 21,232 6,550 25,992 1,491 780 7219 63,324
Accumulated depreciation  ExHiiE
At 1st July 2010 RZE-TF
+tA-A 3,808 6,274 25,484 1,462 1,731 6,666 45,425
Depreciation charge HEER 465 82 321 13 134 212 1,207
Disposals (Note 34) e (M) - - ) - (1,172) - (1,173)
At 30th June 2011 RZE——%F
~A=TH 4273 6,356 25,804 1,475 693 6,878 45479
Net book value REE
At 30th June 2011 RZZ——
~A=tA 16,959 194 188 16 87 401 17,845
At 30th June 2010 RZZ-%F
~A=tA 16,017 276 494 29 574 551 17,941

The carrying amount of land and buildings of the Group is
analyzed as follows:

AEBz T REFRAESFTAT

2012 2011
—E—_% —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T AT I
Held in Hong Kong on: EBERE:
Leases of between 10E504F Hf
10 to 50 years BWAES 12,751 14,712
Held outside Hong Kong on: BELAINGE :
Leases of between 10E504F Hf
10 to 50 years MiHE 2,191 2,247
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REMBHERMEE

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 KEMWE

2012 2011
—E—_fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Group AEE BETT BT
Beginning of the year F9) 6,100 400

Transfer from land and buildings FR i R A e
(Note 7) (B$=E7) 2,500 5,569
Change in fair value NEEES 500 131
End of the year Fax 9,100 6,100

AEBMZEEYMEREEESTHAT

The carrying amount of investment properties of the Group
is analyzed as follows:

2012 2011
—_E-°fF —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI T BEEF T
Held in Hong Kong: EBEBRE:
On medium-term lease 10E504F 3
(10 to 50 years) R EE & 9,100 6,100

FrERENER-_ZT——F,A=1+H
ZATFEEHRASEER —HAZEXE
BB HESE  BEERERFEERAF
(RBEBAEMBg se28)EREMH-
HEDRRERMSG ZIBITREERM

All investment properties were revalued at 30th June 2012
by an independent, professionally qualified valuer, Roma
Appraisals Limited, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors engaged by the Group. Valuations were based
on current prices in an active market.

E o
9 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 HithEEEE
Club membership
g
2012 2011
—E—C°fF —F——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Group AER BT T BT
Beginning of the year F9] 1,858 1,408
Additions B - 450
End of the year F 4R 1,858 1,858
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10 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN 10 EXHRERARIERZER
PROGRESS
Films in

Film rights progress Total

EXWRE HEPZER k)

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Group rEE BETT BETT BETT
Cost D%

At 1st July 2011 R-ZE——%tHA—H 681,721 47,863 729,584

Additions IR 1,289 95,923 97,212

Transfers (=803 51,658 (51,658) -

Write-off of expired film rights B HAE 2 M 2 S EH (18,251) - (18,251)

At 30th June 2012 W-E——&XB=+H 716,417 92,128 808,545

Accumulated amortization and R ERE

impairment

At 1st July 2011 RZE——FtHA—H 663,117 - 663,117

Amortization for the year FEEH 41,453 - 41,453

Impairment losses REEE 1,470 - 1,470

Write-off of expired film rights B EAE M 2 I 6H (18,251) - (18,251)

At 30th June 2012 N-E——FXA=1H 687,789 - 687,789
Net book value BREFE

At 30th June 2012 N-ZT——&XA=+H 28,628 92,128 120,756

At 30th June 2011 RZE——FA=1H 18,604 47,863 66,467
Amortization of approximately HK$41,453,000 (2011: BN BAA) B 41,453,000 (=T ——
HK$92,806,000) is included in the cost of revenue in the & : B #092,806,0007T) E BIEEGZA R
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Az R 2 WA A
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GEMBHRRME
10 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN 10 EXHRERARIERZER
PROGRESS (continued) (4)
Films in
Film rights progress Total
BEERE REREY 4855
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group REE BT BT BT
Cost D%
At 1st July 2010 R-ZE—ZEF+H—H 628,010 91,708 719,718
Additions R 2,322 42,983 45,305
Transfers L 86,828 (86,828) =
Write-off of expired film rights S BT 5 AR 2 88 (35,439) - (35,439)
At 30th June 2011 RZE—FA=1H 681,721 47,863 729,584
Accumulated amortization and 2 ERE
impairment
At 1st July 2010 RZE—ZEFtHA—H 593,719 = 593,719
Amortization for the year FEEH 92,806 = 92,806
Impairment losses BIEEE 12,031 - 12,031
Write-off of expired film rights B BA S 2 AR 2 i 8 (35,439) - (35,439)
At 30th June 2011 RZE——FA=1H 663,117 = 663,117
Net book value BREHE
At 30th June 2011 RZE—FXA=1H 18,604 47,863 66,467
At 30th June 2010 RZZE—ZEFA=+H 34,291 91,708 125,999
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HAEMBHERMEE

11 B ARIKRE

Company
p/ /N
2012 2011
—E-CfF —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BET I
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT, LK AE 72,096 70,606

As disclosed in Notes 18 and 19, on 27th June 2012,
the Company granted 34,235,403 share options to the
Directors and certain employees of the Company. The
share options were vested immediately and the fair value of
the share options at the grant date was HK$1,489,685.

The amount was credited to equity as “share-based
compensation reserve” with corresponding debit to
“investments in subsidiaries” in the Company’s financial
statements, and debit as “share-based compensation”
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively.
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FEMBHRERMET

11

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The following is a list of the subsidiaries as at 30th June

11 EBARKE @)

UTRAR-_E——FRA=THZHNE

2012. NG
Place of
incorporation
and kind of Particulars of Percentage of equity Principal activities and
Name legal entity issued share capital held by the Company place of operation
&1 7 A ST 3t BE 2#1f7 NGl g TEXH
&% RiEEERER BAHE BAED L REXME
Direct Indirect
i Lk
*Universe Films (Holdings) ~ The British Virgin Ordinary US$100 100 - Investment holding in
Limited Islands, limited Hong Kong
liability company
RBRAES. LB A100% T 100 - REZR BE
BREERA
Universe Laser & Video Co.  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary = 100 Distribution of films in various
Limited liability company HK$1,000,000 videogram formats in
Hong Kong
EFENRTYERAA R BREAAR  TRRRA - 100  LARRSEHABTEY &F
#1%1,000,0007T
Universe Films Distribution ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Sub-licensing of film rights and
Company Limited liability company film exhibition in Hong Kong
BEFTARBOIERAA BB BEREEAR  ETRRRABB2T - 100 ERBIRERETHR FE
“Unique Model Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 = 100 Model agency in Hong Kong
liability company
BE AREERR  EERRRAERI00T - 100 RERRE FE
Universe Digital Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Distribution of films in various
Entertainment Limited liability company 5% deferred videogram formats in Hong
HK$10,000 Kong
EFUGRLER AR ER BREEAR  ETRRERA - 100  WAPRSEHAETEY BE
#110,0007C
59RIE AR AR A
##10,0007T
Universe Management Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,000 = 100 Provision of management
Services Limited liability company 5% deferred services for the Group in
HK$10,000 Hong Kong
EFCEERERAA BE BEREAAR  TARKRE - 100 EASEREERRY B
7 #10,0007T
59 TE AR AR AN
#110,0007C

*

No registered Chinese names for the companies.
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HAEMBHRMEE

11 EBARKE @)

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation
and kind of Particulars of Percentage of equity Principal activities and
Name legal entity issued share capital held by the Company place of operation
#E MR L 3 B 2#1T NG g TEXH
& RiEERBER RAHE BRAED I REXME
Direct Indirect
i B
Universe Entertainment The British Virgin Ordinary US$2 - 100 Investment in films production
Limited Islands, limited and licensing of film rights
liability company in Hong Kong
EFREFRAA RERAES TRk A2ETT - 100 RESTEUERKHLETME:
BEREFAH BE
*Universe Pictures The British Virgin Ordinary US$2 - 100 Film acquisition agent for the
International Limited Islands, limited Group in Hong Kong
liability company
RERAES TERgRA2ET - 100 AREz¥RWERE FE
BREEDA
Universe Property Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Properties holding and
Investment Limited liability company rental in Hong Kong
EFNEREERAA B BREAEAR  TRRRAEB2T - 100 HERLEDE FF
Universe (China) Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Investment holding in Hong
Development Limited liability company Kong and investment in
television series production
in the People’s Republic of
China (‘PRC’)
EF(REDERERART BF EREALA  TRRRARB2T - 100 REZK BE
R EREBREER
REARLME ([RE])
“Globalink Advertising Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Advertising agent for the Group
Limited liability company in Hong Kong
B AREAEAR  ERRRAEB2T - 100 ARECESRE FF
Century Creator Company ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 = 100 Investment in films production
Limited liability company in Hong Kong
HREHEERR AR BE BRAEAR  LRREANEET - 100 RAESFEE FE

*

No registered Chinese names for the companies.
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

11 WEBARKE @)

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation
and kind of Particulars of Percentage of equity Principal activities and
Name legal entity issued share capital held by the Company place of operation
#E MR L 3 B 2#1T NG g TEXH
4 RiEERBER RAHE BRAED I REXME
Direct Indirect
EE CkES
Matrix Productions Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Investment in films production
Company Limited liability company in Hong Kong
ABREBRAF B AREEAR  TRRRAE®B2T - 100 RESFHE BB
Digital Programme Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Production of infotainment
Production Limited liability company programme in Hong Kong
U R RERRAR BE BRAEAR  ERREAERT - 100 HFREEAHE AE
Universe International Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 = 100 Purchasing agent for the Group
Technology Limited liability company in Hong Kong
EFERHRERRA BE BRAERAR  LRREAEET - 100 AKERBAE -FR
Universe Artiste Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10 - 100 Management of contracted
Management Limited liability company artistes in Hong Kong
EFEAEEERAA B AREAERR  TERRABEI0T - 100 EEANEAN FE
“Films Station Production Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Films production in Hong Kong
Limited liability company
BE BEREMAR  TRRRABB2T - 100 BEREEFS
Universe Music Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 = 100 Licensing and sub-licensing of
liability company music programme in
Hong Kong
BFELERRAA BE BRAEAR  ERREAEET - 100 RERERILGAMRE 5
Universe Information & Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Inactive
Entertainment Limited liability company
EFERERERAA B AREEAR  ETRRRAEB2T - 100 EE=%
Universe Industrial Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Inactive
Development Limited liability company
EFIFERARAF BE BREAERAR  LTRERRAEET - 100 EE2%

*

No registered Chinese names for the companies.
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HAEMBHRMEE

11 WEBARKE @)

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation
and kind of Particulars of Percentage of equity Principal activities and
Name legal entity issued share capital held by the Company place of operation
#E MR L 3 B 2#1T NG g TEXH
4 RiEERBER RAHE BRAED I REXME
Direct Indirect
i CkES
Universe Intellectual Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Inactive
Property Limited liability company
ERABERERAR B AREAEAR  TRRRAEB2T - 100 EEex
Joy Talent Investment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Property holding
Limited liability company
BEREERAR BE BRAEAR  ERREAEEIT - 100 WEHA
“Universe Films Acquisition ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 = 100 Sub-licensing of film rights
Limited liability company in Hong Kong
BB BEREAMAR  ETRRRAEBT - 100 BERSYRE BB
Mutual Faith Investment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 - 100 Property development in
Limited liability company Hong Kong
EEREBRAR B AREARAR  ETRRRAEBI00T - 100 WEBER FE
Elite Master Holdings Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1,000 - 100 Inactive
Limited liability company
EEERRAT B BEREARAR  TRRKRABEE0007T - 100 EEEx
Weluck Development The British Virgin Ordinary US$1 = 100 Inactive
Limited Islands, limited
liability company
KEEBRERAA KBRS LRRRAIET - 100 HTEZE
BREARR
Grant Talent Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1 = 100 Films production in Hong Kong
liability company
REBRRA BE BRAERA  ERRRAEEIT - 100 EBYEE BB

*

No registered Chinese names for the companies.
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12 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

12 AItHERNEMEE

ASSETS
Group
AEE
2012 2011
LY -
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI T BT
Beginning of the year F9) 1,275 1,275
Additions BN 1,730 -
Provision for impairment of AHEHENEREEZ
available-for-sale financial assets BB (3,005) —
End of the year FR - 1,275
Unlisted investment JELEMTE
Equity securities HEmE S - 1,275

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. The fair value of unlisted security is based
on future free cash flows attributable to shareholders
discounted using a discount rate based on the risk free
interest rate and the risk premiums attributable to the
underlying investment.

In view of the adverse trend of financial health and
business outlook for the investee, including factors such
as industry and sector performance as well as operational
and financing cash flow, various operating metrics fell
short of management’s previous expectation, therefore,
management determined the investment in available-for-
sale financial assets is impaired.
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13 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY 13
CONTROLLED ASSETS

The Group has entered into certain jointly controlled asset
arrangements to produce and distribute four television
series (2011: four) and five films (2011: nil) respectively.
The Group has participating interests ranging from 29%
to 87% in these joint ventures. As at 30th June 2012, the
aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities recognized
in the consolidated financial statements relating to
the Group’s interests in these jointly controlled asset
arrangements are as follows:

HAEMBHRMEE

LEEREEER

AREBEERI Y — LA REHIEELR B
BERBTHHREREER (—F——
FMOMBE)RAFEXL (T ——F:
) AEENLEFSEHE BB H29%
BTN 2 HER - N _T—_F XA
=tTH ARAAKERIALRIZESE
ERz R EREEMBEHRERT
BRRAEERAENT

Group
K&
2012 2011
—F-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT I
Assets BE
Television series rights and television B EEBIRE R
series in progress BUER 2 B EEE 54,746 5,703
Film rights and films in progress BRI R R
B 47,471 =
Accounts receivable and JFE U BR R
other receivable A E U BR SR 591 -
102,808 5,703
Liabilities BfE
Accounts payable and FETBR R &
other payable b &< BR X 788 495
Deposits received BEWETE 33,169 21
33,957 516
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13 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ASSETS (Continued)

13 L EEHEEE DS &)

Group
A&
2012 2011
—E—-C—fF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Revenue W #5 5,557 8
Expenses =353 (5,783) =
(Loss)/Profit after income tax KSR % (B8) &F (226) 8
14 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 14 FEWER X
Group
A&
2012 2011
—E-°F —F——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BET T
Accounts receivable JiE Uk BR 3k 16,844 50,518
Less: Provision for impairment of B MR R 2
accounts receivable B (142) -
Accounts receivable —net JEUL BR TR — F 58 16,702 50,518
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14 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The carrying amount of the Group’s accounts receivable

14 FEWERFX (&

AEE 2 BRUWERZREEA NG

was denominated in the following currencies: ZI1E :
2012 2011
—_F-_F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
- HK$ — 14,878 48,456
- Us$ —£T 747 1,972
- RMB — AR 1,077 30
— Australian dollars —RIT - 60
16,702 50,518
The carrying amount of accounts receivable approximates JEURER R 2 BRI EEE RN ERA
to their fair values.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet REEH EERRNESRAREES
date is the carrying value of accounts receivable disclosed ot W R R BR TED (o
above.
As at 30th June 2012, the ageing analysis of the accounts RZFE—ZFA=1+H BKERZ
receivable was as follows: BRESDMTEAT :
Group
AE
2012 2011
—E—_fF —T——%F
HK$’000 H K$’000
BET T BT
Current to 90 days ENEAZ=90H 10,051 7,475
91 days to 180 days 91H =180H 4,030 7,810
Over 180 days 180H A £ 2,621 85,238
16,702 50,518
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14 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Sales of videogram products are with credit terms of 7 days
to 60 days. Sales from fim exhibition, licensing and sub-

licensing of film rights are on open account terms.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
accounts receivable, as the Group has a large number of

customers, and are internationally dispersed.

Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts

receivable are as follows:

14 FEWERFX (&

HEREREMZIEEMSHTHEE0E T
F-BENR RAREREZHRELZH
ERXHYARRKRLAET

BUEERLEEPNEERR BAX
SERBERZEF BERMERSU-

FEM BRI 2 RUE R s 2 N T

Group
rE
2012 2011
—E-—f -4
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT AT I
At 1st July RtH—H - 237
Provision for impairment of FEMBR R 2
accounts receivable VIR 142 =
Accounts receivable written off during %I A& K gE 4k B £y
the year as uncollectible & LAt AR SR 8 - (237)
At 30th June MWANA=+H 142 -

The Group has recognized a provision of HK$142,000
(2011: nil) for the impairment of its accounts receivable
during the year ended 30th June 2012. During the year
ended 30th June 2012, no provision (2011: HK$237,000)

was written off from the allowance account.

Save as a bank’s guarantee of HK$90,000 provided to
the Group by a customer, the Group does not hold any

collateral as security.
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15 INVENTORIES 15 &
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT I
Raw materials R 2,069 1,994
Finished goods B om 2,376 4,072
4,445 6,066
Less: Provision for impairment of W FE RE
inventories B (1,061) (2,447)
3,384 3,619
The cost of inventories recognized as expenses and FERAFRERSE RIS A KK
included in cost of revenue amounted to approximately )& B FT 498 %4,390,0007T (= F
HK$4,390,000 (2011: HK$4,709,000). —— % : B %4,709,0007T) °
Movements on the provision for impairment of inventories GEZRERE2ZEHNT
are as follows:
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E-°fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI T BT T
At 1st July ntA—H 2,447 3,002
Write-back of provision for inventories 17 & # [0 9) (95)
Inventories written off during the year & A% A& K B §5 & A
as unsalable FEMHE (1,377) (460)
At 30th June MNA=1+H 1,061 2,447
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15 INVENTORIES (continued) 15 & I=4¢ )
The Group had written back a provision of HK$9,000 AEEEREBE_T——FH=1H
(2011: HK$95,000) made in previous years after the FEARBREAEL 2 BERBE
relevant inventories were sold during the year ended 30th 9,000t (=& ——4 : B #%95,0007T)
June 2012. The amount written back has been included in ERBETELENE -BEESEEIA
“other operating expenses” in consolidated statement of FEREWMREAZ [EMEEER] -

comprehensive income.

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16 RERFAEEEW
Group Company
r& /N

2012 2011 2012 2011

—5-_% —E——F —5-Z% —E——F

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

BETT BT BETT BT

Cash at bank RITBE 13,769 20,606 79 40

Cash in hand FEES 90 131 - =
Term deposits with FEHAA=EA

original maturities of FOR={E A

three months or less 2 EETES 57,217 58,695 - =

71,076 79,432 79 40

Maximum exposure to credit risk & EIR 8 & = #dE 70,986 79,301 79 40

Denominated in: PAT B E #7118 -

- HK$ —B 70,976 69,416 79 40

— Canadian dollars -7 - 162 - =

— Thai Baht — Rk 4 27 - =

- US$ =355 17 35 - -

-RVB - ARE 31 9,748 - -

- Other currencies —HuE% 48 44 - =

71,076 79,432 79 40
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)

The effective annual interest rate on term deposits with
original maturities of three months or less is ranged from
1.0% to 1.3% (2011: ranged from 0.6% to 1.0%); these
deposits have an average original maturities of 35 days
(2011: 54 days).

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions

HAEMBHRMEE

16 RHERHREEEY @)

REBEAE=RAxKPR=(ER 2 EH
FRNERFFNEESHI0EE1IE (=
T——F:HOBEZE1.0E)  kEFR
HFHREIER A35K ( —FE——F:54

) e

ARBR—RBIAEHIBRZEERA
REERZFBEHEINEE ST EBAN

imposed by the PRC Government. HNGEFRTE °
SHARE CAPITAL 17 B A&

Number of Issued and
ordinary shares fully paid
21T
LERYA REEHE
HK$’000
T I
At 1st July 2011 R=ZZT——FtA—H 1,624,605,370 32,492
Placement of shares (Note) D ERE (2F) 87,165,000 1,743
At 30th June 2012 R=E—=®~xA=+AH 1,711,770,370 34,235
At 30th June 2011 RZE——FH=T1H 1,624,605,370 32,492

Note: On 22nd August 2011, a substantial shareholder of the
Company placed an aggregate 87,165,000 existing
ordinary shares of the Company to certain independent
third parties, at a price of HK$0.115 per share, for a total
cash consideration of HK$10,023,975 and the substantial
shareholder subscribed for 87,165,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company at the same price on 24th August 2071.
The excess of the proceeds from the placement of shares
over the shares issued, net of transaction costs directly
attributable to placement of shares, was credited to the
share premium account.

The total authorized number of ordinary shares is 5,000
million shares (2011: 5,000 million shares) with a par value
of HK$0.02 per share (2011: HK$0.02 per share). All issued
shares are fully paid.
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18 SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 26th November 2003, the
Company conditionally approved and adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 29th November 2011 (the “2011
AGM”), the Company approved the refreshment of the
scheme mandate limit, which is 171,177,037, representing
10% of the total number of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of the 2011 AGM, under the

Scheme.

On 27th June 2012, the Company granted 34,235,403
share options to the certain Directors and employees of the
Company at the subscription price of HK$0.067 per share
option which were vested immediately and exercisable for a
three-year period between 27th June 2012 and 26th June
2015 (both days inclusive). Each share option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company. None of the share options has been exercised or
cancelled for the period from 27th June 2012 to 30th June

2012.
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18 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the
period at the measurement dated 27th June 2012
of HK$1,489,685 was determined under the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model and based on the following
assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 0.242%
Expected life of the share options 3 years
Expected volatility 116.31%

The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model requires input
of highly subjective assumptions, including the risk-
free interest rate and the expected stock price volatility.
Because changes in the subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate, the Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model does not necessarily provide a reliable
measure of the fair value of the share options.

After the refreshment of the scheme mandate limit in the
2011 AGM and granting of share options on 27th June
2012, the total number of share options available for issue
under the Scheme as at 30th June 2012 was 136,941,634,
the full exercise of which in subscribing for shares of the
Company would represent 8% of the total number of the
issued shares of the Company as at 30th June 2012.
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19 SHARE PREMIUM AND OTHER

19 B fpim B & H b 45

RESERVES
(@ Group @ A%
Reserve Share-based
Share arisingon  Revaluation compensation
premium  consolidation reserve reserve Total
HeRE B 9
B 4 55 1B FiGEE EfhfE A ekl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1st July 2011 RZZ——F
+HA—H 127,211 821 - - 128,032
Placement of shares RIDEE 8,082 - - - 8,082
Grant of share options RiLERE - - - 1,490 1,490
Fair value adjustment upon T RIEFEEZE
transfer from land and RENEZ
buildings to investment ATHERE
properties - - 938 - 938
Deferred tax effect on far ~ EEFTEHBH LK
value adjustment upon BFERERE
transfer from land and e AN
buildings to investment HE e
properties - - (155) - (155)
At 30th June 2012 RZZ—_F
~NA=TH 135,293 821 783 1,490 138,387
At 30th June 2011 and R-Z——%
1st July 2010 NA=TAR
—T-%F
+HA—H 127,211 821 - - 128,032
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19 SHARE PREMIUM AND OTHER
RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company

HAEMBHERMEE

19 B EEREMFESE @

(o) N/NC]

Share-based

Share Contributed compensation
premium surplus reserve Total
RpiEE BERES BROBMGkE wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EET T BT BT BT
At 1st July 2011 R=E——
+H—H 127,211 51,852 - 179,063
Placement of shares B s 8,082 - - 8,082
Grant of share options & B R - - 1,490 1,490
At 30th June 2012 NZT——4F
NA=TH 135,293 51,852 1,490 188,635
At 30th June 2011 and RZE——F
1st July 2010 ~NAZTAR
—T-TF
+HA—H 127,211 51,852 - 179,063

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange for the issued shares of Universe
Films (Holdings) Limited and the value of net assets of the
underlying subsidiaries acquired on 28th June 1999. Under
the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus shall not be distributed to the
shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for believing
that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realizable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

At Group level, the contributed surplus is reclassified into its
components of reserves of the underlying subsidiaries.
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HAEMBHERME

20 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 20 FEY (BB AR R
SUBSIDIARIES AND THE ULTIMATE RERERATNE

HOLDING COMPANY

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and FT R RIB R KR %Q&ZEE/\\\?&TE\
repayable on demand. All balances are denominated in BE-FTBEA ﬁ%%u,%mzm* =K ivai7
Hong Kong dollars and approximate to their fair values. HEXBARQTERSE

21 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The carrying amount of the Group’s accounts payable
approximates to their fair values and are denominated in

the Hong Kong dollars.

21 ETEREK

AEEERANERREEEEQFE
HEILAEEBIIE-

As at 30th June 2012, the ageing analysis of the accounts RZZE—ZFXRA=1TH ENERZKZ
payable was as follows: BRER DATEAT
Group
rE
2012 2011
—E-_F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT I
Current to 90 days BNEAZ=90H 1,623 1,923
91 days to 180 days 91H £180H 139 493
Over 180 days 180H A £ 2,540 2,113
4,302 4,529
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22 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 22 BhEFHERIE
LEASES
As at 30th June 2012, the Group’s obligations under R-ZE——FXA=1+H KAEB &
finance leases were repayable as follows: BHEAEENIATFHRAER:
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E—-=fF —F—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Within one year —F K 15 71
Future finance charges on obligations &l & 1 & A& & 2 A 2Rk
under finance leases A H - =
Present value of obligations under b A A S A IE
finance leases ZBRE 15 71
The present value of obligations under finance leases was REHEREZRBENT
as follows:
Group
&
2012 2011
—E—Zf —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT I
Within one year —F R 15 71

137



Universe International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HAEMBRRME

23

DEFERRED INCOME TAX 23 IBEIEFTEH
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when EREAEARTRNGERERIBE EH
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax REVRBEGEERE BREMSHIR
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred B — BB BRI iSRS R B E
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The HEELEKHE NG EERERLE
amounts shown in the consolidated balance sheet are P2 S BEIEEE WIKEEmET -
determined after appropriate offset.
Group Company
A& Y. O/N|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—5-Zf% —E——F —5-2% —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT
Deferred income tax assets: ELEMEREE:
- Deferred tax assets to be —HiB12(8 AR
recovered after more than REERIEEE
12 months (495) 1) (219) -
- Deferred tax assets to be —7E128 A (e &9
recovered within 12 months EREFRIEEE (69) (624) (54) (327)
(564) (625) (273) (327)
Deferred income tax liabilities: ELHMERARE:
— Deferred tax liabiltties to be —BiB12ME A AUk E
recovered after more than REEREEE
12 months 519 640 - -
- Deferred tax liabilties to be —E12f8 A R E A
recovered within 12 months ELEHBEE 64 - - -
583 640 - —
Deferred tax liabilties/ ERHEEE/
(assets) - net (BE)-F8 19 15 (273) (327)
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 23 IEEREH (@

The movements of the deferred income tax liabilities/ FRNEEFMSHAE (BE)-FHEZ
(assets) — net during the year are as follows: ET
Group Company
KERE /N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F-Cf —2——F —5-Zf% —2——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT
Beginning of the year F4] 15 (56) (327) (321)
Deferred income tax (credited)/ ~ RERAEZEUKRENA
charged to consolidated (3t AN) /B2
statement of comprehensive EIEFEHR
income (Note 29) (M=E29) (151) 71 54 (6)
Deferred income tax effect on ERLPEHIER T
fair value adjustment upon REFERE
transfer from land and buildings X &#M% 2 AFE
to investment properties AR E 155 = - -
End of the year F 19 15 (273) (327)
Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax losses EIEFTIS A E T R E AR B R 1 Al 25 1)
carried forward to the extent that realization of the related FERRRERRENNER ML EE 2
tax benefit through the future taxable profit is probable. The RIEBEEER - AEBARAERHE
Group has unrecognized tax losses of HK$113,956,953 &5 18 7% %#113,956,9537L (=T — — 4 :
(2011: HK$99,609,000) to carry forward against future 75 199,609,0007T ) 7] 45 #2 DA S 7R 2R &
taxable income. The tax losses have no expiry dates. R A o SE T TH B RN B HA E o
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 23 IRERTIFH (@)

The movement of deferred tax assets and liabilities during FARRLEAMEHEERBECE S (A
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of mERF—HBEME 2 AR ) AT

balances within the same tax jurisdiction was as follows:

(@ Group @ A~&EH
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFRSEHAE
Accelerated tax
depreciation and total
MMEFERERBHE
2012 2011
—E-°fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
EET T BEEF T
Beginning of the year F4 640 884
Credited to consolidated Rire 2E K EE
statement of comprehensive A&EFA
income (212) (244)
Deferred income tax effect on EIEFTS IR
fair value adjustment upon FR - i 2 A8 e
transfer from land and EREMEL
buildings to investment NEEREZ
properties T 155 -
End of the year FR 583 640
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 23 IRERTIFH (@)

(@) Group (Continued) @ AHEE s
Deferred income tax assets EEMSHEE
Tax losses and total
MIEEE KRB
2012 2011
g% —E——4%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST
Beginning of the year F4 (625) (940)
Charged to consolidated Rizs E2ENREEK
statement of comprehensive AR
income 61 16
End of the year Fx (564) (625)
(o) Company (b) A&7
Deferred income tax assets BEEMBHEE
Tax losses and total
HIEBEREHE
2012 2011
—E—_f —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Beginning of the year F1 (327) (321)
Charged/(credited) to statement M2 EWzE XK A
of comprehensive income Hkr (5T A) 54 ©6)
End of the year FIR (273) (327)
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24 EXPENSES BY NATURE 24 B EZEHR
Expenses included in cost of revenue, impairment DM AN B E R BRI 2
losses of film rights and film deposits, selling expenses, WEBE HEER THREARAEME
administrative expenses and other operating expenses, are EEAANEBRSNAT:

analyzed as follows:

Group
rE
2012 2011
—E-°fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI T BT T
Amortization of film rights (Note 10) B RohAE 2 B (FIEE10) 41,453 92,806
Amortization of leasehold land (Note 6) FH& + it~ # £ (Bt 3%6) 82 82
Depreciation of owned assets (Note 7) HBHEEZEZTE (KMzF7) 995 1,149
Depreciation of leased assets (Note 7) MHEBEZIE (H=E7) 57 78
Impairment losses of film rights BRhRE O REEE
(Note 10) (Mg5E10) 1,470 12,031
Impairment losses of film deposits B2 REESE - 422
Provision for impairment of accounts & U BR 7% 2 SR (B B
receivable (Note 14) (MIEE14) 142 —
Provision for impairment of available- At HEN SR EE 2
for-sale financial assets (Note 12) BERE (HiE12) 3,005 =
Write-back of provision for inventories 17 & [0
(Note 15) (Ki3E15) 9) (99)
Write-off of inventories FE 2 37 16
Write-off of accounts receivable JFEE UK BR TR 2 1 8 650 =
Employee benefits expenses (Note 25) & E & #I5 & (Ff7£25) 20,232 20,549
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA 4,390 4,709
Advertising costs B4 A 1,107 1,015
Direct operating expenses arising from  Z A& KA K
investment properties that generate HEMER
rental income BEEEEERR 23 3
Auditor’s remuneration %S AN B < 845 810
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On 1st December 2000, a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) was set up for employees,
including the executive Directors. Under the MPF scheme,
the Group’s contributions are at 5% of employees’ relevant
income as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance up to a maximum of HK$1,250
per employee per month. The employees also contribute a
corresponding amount to the MPF scheme if their relevant
income is more than HK$5,000. The MPF contributions are
fully and immediately vested in the employees as accrued

benefits once they are paid.

HAEMBHERMEE

25 EERAEX

R_ZEZETF+_A— A ARAEA
BE (BERNITES) L —HRFIMER
Bertel ([RERE]) - BERES
ﬂéU$%l21%%&ﬁA2ﬁﬁW
A(ERRBHRFMEAESFENEM)
5%&T & t%@%iﬂZﬁmﬁmﬁ%
#1,2507T c feifE B 2 B BA AT A B
P& 55,0007t + IR/ M58 1E & 5T 8 1E 4R
FEH B 2 R - BRES HRZ & - Al
TERAEBNES 2 REHER-

Group
KE
2012 2011
—E—_fF —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Wages and salaries T& K % b 16,963 18,905
Provision for unutilized annual leaves R B) B 2 # & 103 =
Write-back of provision for REAFR 2
unutilized annual leaves 15 1B - @)
Provision for long service payments REAR T € 2 Bifl 61 (121)
Staff welfare B T&EA
— Operating lease payments for —EEFEL
Directors’ quarters 2EHEER R 925 1,028
- Others —HAf 315 363
Pension costs — defined RIREKAR—
contribution plan HEETE 375 376
Share-based compensation & 17 =R B 1,490 =
Total (including Directors’ emoluments) #%E (BIEEEHS) 20,232 20,549
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 25 & EEFIFHEZ @

(Continued)
(@) Directors’ and senior management’s @ BEBNEREEAE
emoluments &
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended BHE—_Z2——F#A=1THIHF
30th June 2012 is set out below: =R ﬁ% EE AT -
Salary,
housing Employer’s
allowances,  contribution
and benefits  to retirement  Share-based
Fees in kind scheme compensation Total
HE EE RIkEE
Name of Directors EElA e ERERENNG EEET BLEA aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BETT BETR BETT BETR
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Danell WNB L& - 6,369 12 745 7,126
Mr Yeung Kim Piu BRIEEE - 711 12 186 909
Mr Ng Kwok Tung il b 120 - - - 120
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert 2B 120 - - - 120
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace SiRELE 120 - - - 120
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended BHE—_Z2——FNA=THIHF
30th June 2011 is set out below: E - SESHNHMOT
Salary,
housing Employer’'s
allowances, contribution
and benefits to retirement
Fees in kind scheme Total
e FE RINETE
Name of Directors EEMSY we EEREWZ EFHER s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil ~ #/N %4 - 5,838 12 5,850
Ms Chiu Suet Ying* BRI - 856 2 858
Mr Yeung Kim Piu GRIEEE - 694 12 706
Mr Ng Kwok Tung MBS 107 - - 107
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert BT 107 - - 107
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace ~ SiRE %4 107 - - 107
* Resigned as an executive Director during the year * REBZ—F——FNA=FHI
ended 30th June 2011. FERRNFFEHTTESE -
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(@) Directors’ and senior management’s

emoluments (Continued)

Directors’ fees disclosed above include HK$360,000
(2011: HK$321,000) paid to the independent non-

executive Directors.

No Directors waived emoluments in respect of the
year ended 30th June 2012 (2011: same).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included two

Directors (2011: three) whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The

@)

HAEMBHRMEE

25 BEEEABEZ @

EEZNEREREAB 2B
& ;)

T BEERESBREEN FTBILIER
1TEE 2 #e 8 ¥360,0007T (=
T—— 4 : H 321, 0007T ) °

MEEEREUDREE_T——
FRA=TELFEZHME (=F
——%F:HR) -

hAE&EEHFAL

RERNAEBREZ RS HATEE
—H(ZE——F =R)EF R’
E7MEFHBE R LERIFEE - ik
=Z(ZE——F WE) ATRF

emoluments payable to the remaining three (2011: AZERMEIAT
two) individuals during the year are as follows:
Group
A&
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT S IT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, HA#H 4 - = E 328 -
other allowances and Hfh#RG K&
benefits in kind BT &= 3,113 2,646
Contributions to RORET B
retirement scheme 37 24
Share-based compensation & 17 =R B 559 -
3,709 2,670
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

25 EERAEXZ @

b)) ARE&EEHALT @)
I EHMNE THASEENR :

Group
&
2012 2011
—E-—f —T——F
Emolument band (in HK$) FEHEEE (B)
Nil to HK$1,000,000 487 2= 75 1,000,0007T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to 75 #54,000,001 7. &
HK$2,000,000 78 #2,000,0007T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to 78 #2 000,001 T E
HK$2,500,000 7512 500,0007T 1 -
3 2
26 OTHER INCOME 26 Hfthlg A
Group
&
2012 2011
—_E-_fF —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI T AT T
Sponsorship income ThEhEKE 882 994
Screening income BN 76 51
958 1,045
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i e TSR M L

27 Hittirzm—F 8

Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT I
Deposits and payables forfeited BUET & M ER FRIE 335 3,879
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE HeEREH 2
plant and equipment (E518) ek (1) 208
Net foreign exchange BN (B18) W F8
(losses)/gains (4) 87
Others H A, 183 1,232
513 5,406
FINANCE INCOME 28 EATFUT N
Group
AE
2012 2011
—E—_fF —F——%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BT T
Interest income A EUA 923 559
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29 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 20 FR5% (E#) &

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of ERNEHEIRBRAFEE 2 B5TE
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for BB AR K16.5% (ZT——F:
the year. 16.5% ) 1 °

The amount of income tax (credit)/expense (credited)/ e (E#) " ZEARGEZE KSR
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive WGEA) /R Z 2 EEIT

income represents:

Group
&
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT I
Hong Kong profits tax BB NER
Current year KEEZ 80 1,004
Overprovision for previous years BEFEHRERE - (310)
Deferred income tax (Note 23) EIEFTER (K15E23) (151) 71
(1) 765
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29 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 29 FREH (E#) B @

(Continued)
The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from RNEE S BR TS B B R R 18 - BLR
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted R#RE M B A 5 & F kg8 8 A 8 ik
average tax rate applicable to profits or losses of the O ERMEEE BRI =R
consolidated subsidiaries as follows: ™
2012 2011
—F-=F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Loss before income tax MR ET1S R A ES 18 (17,523) (20,118)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates EEEHEBERHEF
applicable to profits or losses in the NEEZERANE
respective countries MEFERHIR (2,891) (3,319)
Income not subject to taxation IR Z WA (314) (335)
Expenses not deductible for taxation A i 2 &
purpose 751 607
Overprovision for previous years BT EHBERE - (408)
Utilization of unrecognized tax losses  {f F AR W7 2 Fi JH E5 18 (70) -
Tax losses not recognized RIERZ T IAEE 2,453 4,220
Income tax (credit)/expense Fre®i (E%) &R (71) 765
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 16.5% I IEA 2 HER16.5% (ZF——
(2011: 16.5%). F:16.5%) °
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30 NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE

31

(LOSSES)/GAINS

The exchange differences recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income are included as

30 ER (B1E) WEFHR

EFEAsERERAERNELZRE
ETFEE :

follows:
Group
A&
2012 2011
—E-°fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Other gains — net H Az — 558 4) 87

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to
the extent of a profit of approximately HK$249,000 (2011:

HK$31,000).
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32

33
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LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to the equity holders of the Company over the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

HAEMBHERMEE

32 BlEHE

SRENBRBEARTVEETA AR
(58 - B DA PO E B AT ERAR 49
FHRAHH-

2012 2011
—E——f —F——fF
Loss attributable to the equity holders ~ ANA Gl 21 A A FE(L 518
of the Company (HK$’'000) (B¥TT) (17,452) (20,883)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue

B 1T E @A IR 5 8

1,698,909,960 1,624,605,370

BREANER
(BRIEL)

Basic loss per share
(HK cent per share)

(1.03) (1.29)

The basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended
30th June 2012 are the same because the effect of the
assumed conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the year was anti-dilutive.

The basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended
30th June 2011 are the same as there was no dilutive
potential ordinary share outstanding during the year.

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2011: same) and any special cash dividend
(2011: HK$1.24 cents per ordinary share) for the year
ended 30th June 2012.
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FEMBHRERMET

34 CASH GENERATED FROM 34 EEELXEZHE
OPERATIONS
2012 2011
—gF-=F —F——fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Loss for the year FEEE (17,452) (20,883)
Adjustment for: FHEIER :
— Income tax (credit)/expense B (E#) &R
(Note 29) (PE29) (71) 765
— Depreciation of owned assets —BEEEZIE
(Note 7) (MIE7) 995 1,149
— Depreciation of leased assets —HEBEEZTE
(Note 7) (MI&ET) 57 78
— Amortization of leasehold land —FE b 7 #
(Note 6) (HI5E6) 82 82
— Amortization of film rights — B R 2 #E R
(Note 10) (MIzE10) 41,453 92,806
— Impairment losses of film rights — BN REEE
(Note 10) (HI5E10) 1,470 12,031
— Provision for impairment of —AIHHENESREEZ
available-for-sale financial WA (H:E12)
assets (Note 12) 3,005 =
— Increase in fair value of investment — R EYE 2 ATFEEM
properties (Note 8) (KtzE8) (500) (131)
— Write-off of inventories — &7 37 16
— Share-based compensation e
expense (Note 18 & 19) (KizE18%19) 1,490 -
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of —HEWE KRR
property, plant and equipment BBz BR (W)
(Note 27) (B&E27) 1 (208)
— Interest income (Note 28) —MEWA (H5E28) (923) (559)
— Provision for impairment of —ERERR 2
accounts receivable (Note 14) AR (H5E14) 142 =
— Write-off of accounts receivable — FE W AR 3k 2 8 650
— Impairment losses of -
film deposits B & 1 - 422
— Write-back of provision for —FERE 2 BB
inventories (Note 15) (MI&E15) ) (95)
Changes in working capital: EEESEE:
— Inventories —FE 207 (176)
— Accounts receivable — FE IR BR X 33,024 (38,204)
— Deposits paid, prepayments —BfMEI & BARKIE
and other receivables K oA i W R I8 (24,427) 8,788
— Accounts payable — FETER X (227) 1,395
— Other payable and —H b FE 5RI8 K&
accrued charges FE T2 (772) 1,640
— Deposits received —BET& 42,147 (15,785)
Cash generated from operations CEEL RS 80,379 43,131
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GAaMBHRRMEE

34 CASH GENERATED FROM

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from

34

CEELEZEE @®

EGARERERA HEWFR HER

sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: B2 TSR BE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Property, plant and equipment Mk HERE
Net book value (Note 7) FRmEEE (FIET) 1 354
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE S REH 2
plant and equipment (&) = (1) 208
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME KSR EZ
plant and equipment RSN - 562
2012 2011
—E—T4fF —EF——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI T BT T
Obligations under finance leases BLE G RIE
End of the year Fax 15 71
Less: Beginning of the year A 4 151
Capital element of XNBEHEE
finance leases payments ZBEARE 5 (56) (80)
Non-cash transactions FIRERH

The principal non-cash transaction was the transfer of
deposits paid of HK$1,730,000 as consideration for the
acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets for the year

ended 30th June 2012.
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GeaMBRERMEE

35 BANKING FACILITIES

At 30th June 2012, no banking facilities was granted by
bank to the Group (2011: same).

36 PENDING LITIGATIONS

(@)

A court action was commenced in the Court of First
Instance of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region on 17th April 2002 by The Star Overseas
Limited (“Star”), an independent third party, against
Universe Entertainment Limited (‘UEL”), an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

By the above action, Star alleges that a sum of
US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799) was
payable by UEL to Star as its share of the revenue of
the movie entitled “Shaolin Soccer” (the “Movie”).

Pursuant to an Order (the “Order”) made by the High
Court on 21st February 2003, the UEL was ordered
and had paid to Star a sum of HK$5,495,700, being
part of the licence fee of the Movie received by UEL
from Miramax Films (being the licencee of the Movie)
and which was also part of the sum claimed by Star.
Pursuant to the Order, UEL is also liable to pay Star
interest in the sum of HK$350,905 and some of the
costs of the application leading to the making of the
Order, all of which have been settled. As the Order
has not disposed of all the claims of US$935,872
(equivalent to HK$7,299,799) by Star, UEL is entitled
to continue to defend the claim by Star for recovering
the remaining balance in the sum of approximately
HK$1,804,099 (HK$7,299,799 less HK$5,495,700).
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36 KRRFFFR

(@)

R-ZZEZE_FMA+LH -BYF
—EEEBIARRB(TRE])
HARF z —REEZENB LR
ETREFR DA ([EFRE])
REBEBRRITTRR RAEERF—
TREBEFR A

BB FilsFARIETEE TIRELE
) H 7 £4935,872% T (HE R
#7,290,7997T) ERDZE—WH
BIOMRR] Z2ER ([ZEF])
Z BB U o

BEEEREEZRR_TT=F
—A-t+t—BEBEZES ([
2] BEFRELERSKERE
18 2 5 75 #65,495,7007T - Bl E F
IR %4 5 5% T 5 1 Miramax Films
(BIZEE 2 REREA)WERZ
BRIREEREBREZHBNS
B BEBZIES BEFRENEAR
E B & 88 %350,9057T 2 FI
BREBZIESHESNER B
HERE X - ARSI EMERR
B 18 5 %935,872% T (HHER B
#7,290,7997T ) Z FT B & {& - L
ETFIREBREETZBBFH
T AE 471,804,009 T (BNEES
7,299,7997T /& #5,495,7007T )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(@)

(Continued)

On 30th April 2002, UEL issued a Writ of Summons
against Star for the latter’'s wrongful exploitation
of certain rights in the Movie co-owned by both
parties. UEL claimed to recover all losses and
damages suffered by UEL as a result of the wrongful
exploitation.

On 9th September 2002, Universe Laser & Video Co.
Limited (“ULV”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, issued a Writ of Summons against
Star for the latter’s infringement of the licensed rights
in the Movie held by ULV. ULV claimed to recover all
losses and damages suffered by ULV as a result of
the said infringement.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the said claim made against
UEL. The Board is of the opinion that the outcome of
the claim against UEL will have no material financial
impact to the Group.

On 1st September 2008, Koninklijke Philips
Electronics N.V. (“KPE”) issued a Writ of Summons
against among other persons, the Company, ULV
and Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (one of the Directors),
being three of the defendants named therein, in
respect of damages arising from alleged infringement
of the patents regarding Video Compact Disc owned
by KPE.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the said claim made against
the Company, ULV and Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.
The Board is of the opinion that the outflow of
economic benefits cannot be reliably estimated and
accordingly no provision for any liability that may
result has been made in the consolidated financial
statements.
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RAEMB MR M

36 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(c)

On 8th January 2010, KPE issued a Writ of Summons
against among other persons, the Company, ULV
and Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (one of the Directors),
being three of the defendants named therein, in
respect of damages arising from alleged infringement
of the patents regarding Digital Video Disc owned by
KPE.

The claim made against ULV has been agreed with
KPE and appropriate provision was recognized
accordingly in the consolidated financial statements.
Based on the consultation with legal counsel, no
further material outflow of economic benefits will be
incurred for ULV.

In June 2012, the action was discontinued against
the Company and Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2012, no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
Directors to be pending against either the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 COMMITMENTS

(@) Operating leases

As at 30th June 2012, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

HAEMBHRMEE

37 i

(@ RE&EHE
R-B——&AA=+0 ~%£H
RIFT Al s 2 (& 2 E MR R 2K
T2 &EBRENRBRENT

Group

rE
2012 2011
—E-fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T S IT

Land and buildings T RAEF
Not later than one year TNHB—F 960 146
Later than one year and not il —F &
later than five years TNHBRAF 1,360 =
2,320 146
(b) Others (o) HAth

As at 30th June 2012, the Group had commitments
contracted but not provided for in these consolidated

R-_ZE——FA=+H &x&EH
BRI NEBERNERETHRRBEEZ

financial statements as follows: AEWR
Group
A
2012 2011
—E—Zf —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Purchase of film rights and BEETRER
production of films BREIE 58,712 80,790

Note: As at 30th June 2012, the Group had commitment of
HK$18,051,000 in respect of jointly controlled assets
(2011: HK$7,832,000).
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FEMBHRERMET

38 FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 38 RREEHERH
ARRANGEMENTS
As at 30th June 2012, the Group had future aggregate R-ZE——FXA=1+H AEBRE
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating A]HREH 2 A8 T B i A AR 2R UER 2 %
leases as follows: EHEEFRIBEELT
Group
rE
2012 2011
—E—-—f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Not later than one year THB—F 289 216
Later than one year and not BiE—F &
later than five years THBRF 80 180
369 396
39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39 AEANTZXRS

(@) Sales of services @ MR ZIHE

During the year ended 30th June 2012, the Group RBE_ZE——FA=1THILF
received a service fee of HK$250,000 and a ER - ANEEWE T — RN
sponsorship fee of HK$2,000 from a company which ERERBACEEERTE N2
is under the significant influence of Mr Lam Shiu Ming, A 77 #250,0007T 2 R 7S & & 7B
Daneil and his associate. #2,0007c 2 BB & ©

Sales of services are charged after negotiations in the fRIG 2 SHE TR —M BB ERK2H
ordinary course of business. HEEETE
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39

(Continued)

(b) Details of key management
compensation
Key management personnel are those management
with responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group.

HAEMBHRMEE

EALTZX S @)

b) T2EEERMZF5

TBEEABRAEMNE BTR
ZHIAEE R 2 EREE -

Group
AE
2012 2011
—E—-ZfF —FE——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERT T R IT
Salaries and other short-term e kEAREHEEEH
employee benefits 9,719 10,034
Employer’s contribution to RIRGTEI 2 B EHK
retirement scheme 49 50
Share-based compensation % 17 Rt B 1,490 -
11,258 10,084

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, no other material related
party transactions have been entered into by the Group.
The transactions were carried out after negotiations
between the Group and the related parties in the ordinary
course of business.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 40

The Directors regard Globalcrest Enterprises Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as being
the ultimate holding company of the Company.
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HEMBHRME

41 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 41 LEBRE=F
Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with HREFERETDEUNFEAFEZ
the current year’s presentation. This classification had no ERAIR -ZEFDBEIBELABET
impact on the Group’s loss for the year ended 30th June ——FRNAZtTHZASEBEEER
2011 or the total equity as at 30th June 2011. E——FRNA-THZBEREETE-
42 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF 42 ERGBEREBE-T—ZF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS NA=+HILEERHE#E
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED EHMHIEET - HEARRE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE MEBEEE
ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 30TH
JUNE 2012
Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial HERGESMBREANIERR B8y
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following TR AEE MM A TMEE] - FTERI R &
amendments, new standards and interpretations which = BZE B EANZREREZ -
are not yet effective for the accounting period ended 30th T——FAAA=THILESFTHAERE
June 2012 and which have not been adopted in these B IR0 AR L AR S B 75 i aR R R AN

consolidated financial statements:

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning

on or after

RUTHBANZ#

FEHERHABER

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income 1st July 2012
2EERE1R (BETA) HEM2EK=IEE 225 —E——_FtH—H
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Deferred tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets 1st January 2012
ST ERIE125E (BFTAR) BIEHIE: HAEENKD —E——_%—H—H
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits 1st January 2013
2T ERIZE195:(2011) EE=w —E—=%—H—H
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 1st January 2013
TR FE2757(2011) LAY b E —E—=%—H—H
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1st January 2013
2 52 R 552855k (2011) REtERBIREERAIZKRE —E—=%—H—H
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GAaMBHRRMEE

42 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF 42 EEBERBZEZE_FE—_F
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS ANA=+HIEE B R
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED EHHEST HENRRE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE HEERE @

ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 30TH
JUNE 2012 (Continued)

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning

on or after

RUTHBANZ#

FEHERHABER

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and 1st January 2014
Financial Liabilities

ST ERIEIRSE (BFTAR) 2% — BiFemEEReRARE —Z—-mFE—-HF—H

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and 1st January 2013
Financial Liabilities

MBERIETE (BFTAR) HKE - BFEREERTREE —T—=%—H—H

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1st January 2015

Bt 5 AR RISE 95 TRITHE —T-—h¥—H—H

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclosures 1st January 2015

(Amendments)
PAFSAERIE 7SR MBI FSAER] SR I A R E A R BE 2 KR —ET-h¥—H—H
95k (IEFTA)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1st January 2013

B 54 BI 28 105% e K —T—=%—H—H

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1st January 2013

IS AERIE 1155 HE —T—=%—H—H

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1st January 2013

BT AR RIS 1255 WENEME R s —E—=%—H—H

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1st January 2013

Bt S BIE135R NEEAE —E—=%—H—H

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of 1st January 2013

a Surface Mine
8 (BRI BHRERE BRXEBSEERRZ FERKAR —T—=%—H—H

Z88) —REF20%R
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FEMBHRERMET

42 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF

AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 30TH
JUNE 2012 (Continued)

Apart from the above, a number of improvements and
minor amendments to HKFRSs have also been issued by
the HKICPA but they are not yet effective for the accounting
year ended 30th June 2012 and have not been adopted in
these consolidated financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations would be in the period of initial
application, but not yet in a position to state whether
these amendments, new standards and interpretations
would have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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Principal Properties Held for Investment Purposes
HIEREREZETEYE

HONG KONG B

Location Lot number Type Lease term
bk HER EE HEFH
No. 61, 1st Street, Lot number 4665 Residential 2047
Section M, Fairview Park, in Demarcation District 104

Yuen Long, New Territories, Hong Kong

BRI R S 4910455 30 ER46655% T=x —Zmt+EF
A EEMER

£ — 6158

Factory K on 16th Floor of Block 3, Kwai Chung Town Industrial 2047
Golden Dragon Industrial Centre, Lot number 130

Nos. 172 — 180 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

BB R R 22/ T % 3 BR 13057 I —ENEF
REPEE1722 18058

SRELERD

FE=H+NEKE

Car park no. 26, 2nd Floor, Kwai Chung Town Industrial 2047
Wyler Centre Phase I, Lot number 130

Nos. 192 — 200 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

BB AR ER 27 T [ 1 B 130553 I —EOF
NEBEE192 220057

B 0% —H

ZIEEAE265

Car park no. 41, 2nd Floor, Kwai Chung Town Industrial 2047
Wyler Centre Phase Il Lot number 130

Nos. 192 — 200 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

BB AL 3L 57 T [ 0 B 13058 I% —Zmt+F

AEBEE1922 2005k
EfmhDE —H
TEEMFEAHR
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hEMBREE

RESULTS E 4
Year ended 30th June
BENA=THLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—3-2& —E——% %% CZTENE CZEE\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT
Revenue Wzs 75,881 131,256 119,096 89,733 134,174
Loss before income tax BRETEH A EE (17,523) (20,118) (14,359) (8,498) (26,070)
Income tax credit/(expense) FEREE/ (£A) n (765) (400) (1,207) (1,048)
Loss attributable to the equity holders of ~ ANA B £ A AJElE

the Company B (17,452) (20,883) (14,759) (9,705) (27,118)
Special cash dividend KRIRERE - 20,145 = = =
Proposed final dividend BRRARS - - - - -

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREGRE

As at 30th June
RABZ+E

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—%-Zf "T——% CET-TF CEZNFE C"EIT\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT
Total assets BEE 307,819 272,058 325,466 351,020 353,435
Total liabilities BaRE (73,270) (32,155) (44,535) (55,421) (48,131)
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